
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours 
in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 
(253) 638-1110.  

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

Tuesday, September 13, 2011                                                                    City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
  
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation (Lila Henderson) 
• Pacific Raceways Presentation – Jason Fiorito (20 minutes) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Interlocal Agreement with King County for Regional Affordable Housing 

Program (Throm) 
C-4. Approve Interim Planning Commission Appointment (Michaud) 

 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Consider Public Engagement Process Charter (Matheson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Resolution Adopting Street Lighting Policy (Akramoff) 
3. Consider an Ordinance Granting Covington Water District a Franchise (Akramoff) 
4. Discuss the Grant Funding Project Agreement for Construction of Covington Community 

Park (Thomas) 
5. Discuss the Grant Contract for Construction of the Soccer Field at Covington Community 

Park (Thomas) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If needed 
  
ADJOURN    

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  September 13, 2011   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  AUGUST 9, 2011 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL AND 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES.   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to approve the August 9, 2011 City Council Special and Regular 
Meeting Minutes.  
 
 
 

1 of 114



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2011 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2011 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Special and Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, August 9, 2011 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS – 6:30-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Planning Commission. Applicants 
interviewed included Sonia Foss and Paul Max. 
  
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, August 
9, 2011, at 7:10 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Wagner:  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, 
Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Pending Litigation. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 7:12 to 7:17 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Don Kitsch, Newcastle resident, ProFormance Racing School, requested Council support for 
operations at Pacific Raceways. 
 

2 of 114



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2011 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2011 
 

 2 

Jason Fiorito, Pacific Raceways President, 31001 144th Avenue SE, Kent, expressed concerns 
about King County’s recent interpretation of language affecting the Raceway’s operations and 
asked for Council support at the Raceways and to inform King County of the impacts the 
County’s interpretation will have on Covington. 
 
Elizabeth Stoner, Property Manager for Terramar, requested an additional 15 minutes at a 
future Council meeting to explain why an elevated walkway on their property should not be 
required to be removed. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Approval of Minutes:  July 12, 2011 City Council Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

and July 26, 2011 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Approval of Vouchers:  Vouchers #25571-25648, in the Amount of $373,028.13, Dated 
July 13, 2011; Vouchers #25649-25715, in the Amount of $255,199.67, Dated July 25, 
2011; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000058641-1000058651, Inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $141,835.63, Dated July 8, 2011; and Covington Check 
#1039, Paylocity Checks #1000073836-1000073858, Inclusive, Plus Employee Director 
Deposits, Nationwide Forfeiture Account in the Amount of $142,467.52, dated July 22, 
2011. 
 

C-3. Approve Covington/Maple Valley Joint Street Sweeping Agreement. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-06 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE FINAL PLAT OF CORNERSTONE LU06-0017/2098 FOR 
RECORDING.  

 
C-4. Approve Resolution Approving Cornerstone Final Plat for Recording. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Public Testimony on Proposed 2011 Comprehensive Plan Amendments. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comments for the public hearing. 
 

3 of 114



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2011 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2011 
 

 3 

NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider Appointments to the Planning Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Sonia Foss to fill a position on the Planning Commission for an applicant residing 
inside or outside Covington city limits (within three-mile radius) with a term expiring 
August 31, 2015.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Paul Max to fill a position being vacated by Ed Pfeiffer on the Planning 
Commission for an applicant residing inside Covington city limits with a term expiring 
August 31, 2015.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
3.  Consider Ordinance and Planning Commission Recommendation on Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries and Community Gardens. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmember provided comments and asked questions, and responses were provided. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY AND ADOPTING A TWELVE MONTH 
MORATORIUM WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON ON 
THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, OPERATION, 
LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR CONTINUATION OF 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION 
FACILITIES, PROCESSING FACILITIES, AND COLLECTIVE 
GARDENS; DEFINING TERMS; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC 
HEARING ON THE MORATORIUM; AUTHORIZING A 
WORK PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 08-11 declaring an emergency and adopting a twelve-month 
moratorium on the establishment, location, operation, licensing, maintenance, or 
continuation of medical marijuana dispensaries, production facilities, processing facilities, 
and collective gardens.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Introduction to CIP 1127 – SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue SE. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff introduced and City Engineer Don Vondran gave the 
staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and responses were provided. 

4 of 114



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2011 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2011 
 

 4 

 
5.  Consider Sublease Agreement with King County. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
authorize the city manager to enter into a sublease agreement with King County in 
substantially the form provided.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
6.  Discuss Multifamily Property Tax Exemption Incentive for Economic Development. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers discussed this item and provided direction to staff to continue work on the 
program with a mixed use focus on the town center and an affordability focus in the other zones, 
work with Covington Economic Development Council to evaluate incentives, and bring 
information and options to Council at a future meeting. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer mentioned to Council that as a follow-up to the medical marijuana 
moratorium passed at this meeting, State law requires that the Council hold a public hearing 
within 60 days after the passage.  That public hearing will therefore be appearing on an agenda 
within the next two months. 
 
Mayor Harto asked Councilmembers if they would like to invite Pacific Raceways to give a 
presentation at a future meeting. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to make arrangements with 
Pacific Raceways to give a presentation at a future Council meeting, to inform the larger 
community as to the presentation date so the community could hear the presentation and 
provide public comments to the Council, and to gather information on the conditional use 
permit and the environmental issues for Council. 
 
Mayor Harto asked Councilmembers if they would like to invite Terramar to give further 
information on the elevated walkway.  City Manager Derek Matheson provided an overview of 
this topic. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus that policy stands and requested staff to 
continue to process this matter administratively. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

5 of 114



Unapproved Draft – August 9, 2011 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  September 13, 2011 
 

 5 

Randy Mollenberg, Commercial Construction Northwest, informed Council he was the 
contractor that installed the elevated walkway with the intention of public safety in mind.  Mr. 
Mollenberg mentioned it was never the intention or purpose of the walkway to be a speed bump 
or hump, but as a pedestrian crossing.  Mr. Mollenberg also apologized for his oversight in not 
seeking a permit for this project. 
 
Sonia Foss, thanked Council for her re-appointment to the Planning Commission and thanked 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere for the excellent Volunteer Appreciation Night. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

6 of 114



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2011 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #25779-25837, in the Amount of $382,747.01, Dated August 
24, 2011; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000106917-1000106936, Inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,865.01, Dated August 19, 2011; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000127634-1000127652, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$143,055.65, Dated September 2, 2011. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #25779-25837, in the Amount 
of $382,747.01, Dated August 24, 2011; Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000106917-1000106936, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $143,865.01, Dated August 19, 2011; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000127634-1000127652, Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct 
Deposits in the Amount of $143,055.65, Dated September 2, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 of 114



8 of 114



9 of 114



10 of 114



11 of 114



12 of 114



13 of 114



14 of 114



15 of 114



16 of 114



17 of 114



18 of 114



19 of 114



20 of 114



Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE 

REGIONAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM (RAHP) INTERLOCAL 
COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Human Services Commission  
                                      
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. RAHP Interlocal Cooperation Agreement and RAHP Administrative Guidelines 
 
PREPARED BY:  Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In 2002, the Washington State Legislature approved SHB 2060 to create a dedicated source of 
funds for low-income housing programs to supplement existing housing resources.  The source 
of these funds is document recording fees for affordable housing governed by RCW 36.22.178.  
The county retains 5% to cover the cost of administration, with no additional city funds.  Of the 
remainder, 40% is remitted to the state. The remaining funds are retained by the county and 
deposited into a Housing Opportunity fund allocated to affordable housing projects pursuant to 
the Regional Affordable Housing Program (RAHP) Interlocal Agreement between the county 
and suburban cities, which includes Covington.  The current agreement expires in December 
2011.   
 
The RAHP guidelines allow for funding of different types of housing projects for very low-
income households and include new construction, acquisition of property, and rehabilitation.   
Our participation in the agreement gives the opportunity for cities to leverage use of county, 
state, and federal dollars for affordable housing and community development purposes. 
 
The parties to this renewal agreement have agreed to two updates:  1) to move the RAHP 
Agreement onto the same three-year schedule as the Community Development Block 
Grant/HOME Agreements and to add an automatic renewal clause to the agreement for 
successive three-year periods, if the parties agree that no changes are needed prior to the renewal 
date; and 2) to add a section regarding consortium coordination in the event of a declared disaster 
or emergency that displaces consortium residents from housing.   
 
According to the RAHP Guidelines, participation in the planning process allows each city to 
appoint a staff person to participate in the Inter-jurisdictional Advisory Group (IAG). Victoria 
Throm, Personnel and Human Services Analyst, has served Covington in this capacity, 
reviewing projects from the South Sub-region and working with county staff to make funding 
recommendations to the Joint Recommendations Committee.   
 
 ALTERNATIVES: Not to participate in the Interlocal Agreement 
 

21 of 114



FISCAL IMPACT:     None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____Ordinance              Resolution      X   Motion  _____Other 
        

Councilmember ______________moves, Councilmember___________ 
seconds to authorize the City Manager to enter into the Regional 
Affordable Housing Program Interlocal Cooperation Agreement. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 

22 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 1 of 19 2012-2014 

REGIONAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM 
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT  

 
An Agreement for the use of SHB 2060 Local Low Income 

 Housing Funds in King County 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between King County, a municipal corporation and 
political subdivision of the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as the “county”, and the 
City of ____________________________, hereinafter referred to as the “city”, said parties to the 
Agreement each being a unit of general local government of the State of Washington. 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the King County Countywide Planning Policies, hereinafter referred to as 
the “CPPs”, developed pursuant to the Washington State Growth Management Act, have 
established standards for cities to plan for their share of regional growth and affordable housing; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, to implement the CPPs, the King County Growth Management Planning 
Council appointed a public-private Housing Finance Task Force in 1994, hereinafter referred to 
as the “HFTF,” to recommend potential fund sources for affordable housing for existing low 
income residents and for meeting the affordable housing targets for future growth; and  
 
 WHEREAS the HFTF recommended a document recording fee as a source of regional 
dollars for low-income housing development and support, and recommended that representatives 
of the county, cities and the housing community work together to make decisions about the use 
and administration of such a fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS RCW 36.22.178 provides, in pertinent part, that:  

. . . [A] surcharge of ten dollars per instrument shall be charged by 
the county auditor for each real property document recorded, which will be 
in addition to any other charge authorized by law. The county may retain up 
to five percent of these funds collected solely for the collection, 
administration and local distribution of the funds. Of the remaining funds, 
forty percent of the revenue generated through this surcharge will be 
transmitted monthly to the state treasurer . . .  

* * * 
All of the remaining funds generated by this surcharge will be 

retained by the county and deposited into a fund that must be used by the 
county and its cities and towns for eligible housing projects or units within 
housing projects that are affordable to very low-income households at or 
below fifty percent of the area median income. The portion of the surcharge 
retained by a county shall be allocated pursuant to eligible housing projects 
or units within such housing projects that serve extremely low and very low 
income households in the county and cities within the county, according to 

ATTACHMENT 1

23 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 2 of 19 2012-2014 

an interlocal agreement between the county and the cities within the county, 
consistent with countywide and local housing needs and policies ... [and in 
accordance with the eligible activities listed in the RCW 36.22.178]. 

and 
WHEREAS, existing Interlocal Cooperation Agreements or Joint Agreements between 

the county and cities in the King County Community Development Block Grant Consortium, 
hereinafter referred to as the “CDBG Consortium Agreements,” and/or existing Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreements between the county and cities in the King County HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program Consortium, hereinafter referred to as the “HOME Consortium 
Agreements,” are not modified by this Regional Affordable Housing Program Agreement; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the city and county agree that affordable housing is a regional issue, that 
cooperation between the cities and the county is beneficial to the region, and that a regional 
approach to utilizing the RCW 36.22.178 funds will allow those funds to be used in the most 
productive manner; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is mutually beneficial and desirable to enter into a cooperative agreement 
in order to administer the RCW 36.22.178 revenue as a regional fund, as authorized by the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, RCW 39.34, and, as required by RCW 36.22.178 ; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING 

CIRCUMSTANCES AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES 
CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
I. Definitions and Interpretation.

Capitalized terms used herein shall have the following meanings unless the context in 
which they are used clearly requires otherwise. 

   

“Joint Recommendations Committee” or “JRC” means the interjurisdictional body 
developed pursuant to and the CDBG and HOME Consortia Agreements as described in 
Section III of this Agreement. 

“Interjurisdictional Advisory Committee” or “Advisory Committee” means the work 
group consisting of representatives from cities eligible to participate in the Regional 
Affordable Housing Program, and from the county. This group is advisory to the JRC. 

“RAHP/2060 Planning Group” means the planning group consisting of representatives 
from the cities, from the county, and from housing and human services agencies serving 
King County, that will convene during the year the Regional Affordable Housing 
Program Guidelines expire to review the program and the guidelines and to recommend 
any changes or updates to the guidelines to the JRC.   

 
II. General Agreement 

24 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 3 of 19 2012-2014 

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the Regional Affordable Housing Program 
(“RAHP”), to be administered by the county in cooperation with cities and towns within 
the county that are eligible to participate in the program. The local portion of RCW 
36.22.178 revenue shall be administered as a regional fund by the King County Housing 
and Community Development Program in a manner that is consistent with countywide 
and local housing needs and policies. The city and the county agree to cooperate in 
undertaking RAHP activities as set forth herein. 

 
III. 

A. 

Administration, Distribution and Use of the RAHP. 

An interjurisdictional Joint Recommendations Committee (JRC) has been established 
through the CDBG and HOME Consortia Interlocal Cooperation Agreements and is 
hereby adopted as part of this Agreement. Changes to the JRC that occur in the 
CDBG and HOME Consortia Interlocal Agreements are incorporated by reference 
into this Agreement. 

Joint Recommendations Committee 

1. Composition of the JRC.

2. 

 For RAHP purposes, the JRC shall be composed of 
cities’ representatives and county representatives as specified in the CDBG and 
HOME Consortia Agreements, with the addition of an appointment from the City 
of Seattle. The Seattle JRC representative will only attend JRC meetings that 
concern the RAHP funds and will be entitled to vote solely on RAHP issues and 
not on other King County Consortium matters coming before the JRC. The Seattle 
representative shall be an elected official, department director or comparable level 
staff. 

Powers and Duties of the JRC

a. Review and adopt annual RAHP fund allocations. 

. The JRC shall be empowered to:  

b. Review and adopt RAHP allocation policies. 

c. Review and adopt any subsequent updates to the RAHP Administrative 
Guidelines, as needed (the most recent version of the RAHP 
Administrative Guidelines are attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 1 for 
illustrative purposes). A jurisdiction that is party to this Agreement may 
dispute a JRC decision concerning the RAHP Guidelines by informing the 
JRC Chair of the dispute, and the JRC Chair will schedule time on the 
JRC agenda to discuss and resolve the disputed issue. In carrying out its 
duties, the JRC shall make decisions that are consistent with the RCW 
36.22.178, the Consolidated Housing and Community Development Plan 
of the King County Consortium and the City of Seattle, the Ten Year Plan 
to End Homelessness in King County and other local housing plans, as 
applicable.   

25 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 4 of 19 2012-2014 

3. Interjurisdictional Advisory Committee to the JRC

B. 

. In fulfilling its duties under 
this Agreement, the JRC shall consider the advice of an Advisory Committee, 
made up of representatives from those jurisdictions eligible to participate in the 
RAHP that choose to send representation. The Advisory Committee will meet at 
least once per year with county staff to recommend projects for RAHP funding to 
the JRC and may monitor the distribution of RAHP funds to the sub-regions and 
make recommendations to the JRC concerning actions to achieve geographic 
equity. If the Advisory Committee considers issues other than the RAHP, the staff 
from the City of Seattle shall only participate for the purpose of making RAHP 
recommendations. 

Administration of RAHP Programs

County HCD staff shall provide the JRC and the Advisory Committee with an annual 
report that provides information about the capital housing projects that were awarded 
RAHP funds in that year, as well as the status of capital housing projects that were 
awarded RAHP funds in a prior year(s).   

. The King County Housing and Community 
Development Program (HCD) staff shall distribute RAHP funds pursuant to the 
allocations adopted annually by the JRC, and shall administer the program pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement and the RAHP Administrative Guidelines.   

County HCD staff shall invite the representatives of cities that are a party to this 
Agreement to be involved in any work groups convened to update the RAHP 
Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Fund policies, and to be on the review panel that 
will recommend O&M funding awards to the JRC. 

C. Administrative Costs

D. 

. The county agrees to pay the costs of administering the RAHP 
out of the five percent (5%) of the funds collected by the county for expenses related 
to collection, administration and local distribution of the funds, pursuant to RCW 
36.22.178. No portion of the sixty percent (60%) of the RCW 36.22.178 revenue 
retained by the county in a fund for the RAHP shall be utilized for RAHP 
administration. 

Interest on the RAHP Fund

E. 

. Interest accrued on the sixty percent (60%) of the RCW 
36.22.178 revenue retained by the county in a fund for the RAHP shall remain with 
the RAHP fund and will be distributed to projects according to the subregional 
allocation target formula found in the RAHP Administrative Guidelines. 

Sub-Regional Geographic Equity. The parties intend that the RAHP funds shall be 
awarded to projects throughout the county in a fair and equitable manner over the 
duration of this Agreement. Equity is to be achieved through sub-regional allocation 
targets, as follows: A fixed percentage of RAHP local funds will be allocated to each 
sub-region of the county identified in the RAHP Administrative Guidelines by the 
expiration of this Agreement. The percentage goals for each sub-region set by the 
formula in the RAHP Administrative Guidelines shall by updated by the JRC when 
new data is available. 

26 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 5 of 19 2012-2014 

F. General Use of Funds

G. 

. The local portion of the RCW 36.22.178 revenue shall be 
utilized to meet regional housing priorities for households at or below fifty percent 
(50%) of area median income, as established in the RAHP Administrative Guidelines. 

Compliance with Fair Housing Laws

 

. Parties to this Agreement must take actions 
necessary to ensure compliance with the Federal Fair Housing Act, as amended, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and other applicable state and local fair 
housing laws.  

IV. 

This Agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2012. 

Effective Date 

 
V. 

A. This Agreement shall extend for a three-year period, through the 2012, 2013 and 2014 
calendar years, and shall remain in effect until the RAHP funds allocated in this three-
year period, including any recaptured funds received with respect to activities funded 
during this three-year period, are expended, and the funded activities completed.   

Agreement Duration 

B. Renewal. In the final year of the three-year Agreement period, the county will initiate 
a review of the Agreement no later than March 1st, through an invitation to all eligible 
cities in the county, to determine whether a majority of cities favor automatic renewal 
without amendment for a successive three-year period, or whether there are potential 
amendments. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for participation in a 
successive three-year Agreement period, unless the city official empowered to sign 
the Agreement provides written notice to the county that it elects not to participate in 
a new three-year Agreement period, or that it wishes to amend the Agreement, by the 
date set forth by the County in a letter to the city following the review process. 

VI. 

A. No separate legal or administrative entity is created by this Agreement. It is not 
anticipated that the JRC, the Advisory Committee, nor the RAHP/2060 Planning 
Group will acquire or to hold any real or personal property pursuant to this 
Agreement. Any personal property utilized in the normal course of the work of 
such bodies shall remain the property of the person, entity or city initially offering 
such personal property for the use of any such body. 

General Matters and Recording 

B. The county may terminate this Agreement if at least forty percent (40%) of the 
jurisdictions in the county representing seventy-five percent (75%) of the 
population of the county have not signed this Agreement by February 1, 2012, and 
by February 1st of the first year of successive three-year periods. 

C. The parties to this agreement agree to convene the King County RAHP 
Consortium as rapidly as possible after a proclamation of a state of emergency by 

27 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 6 of 19 2012-2014 

the King County Executive or when the King County Emergency Coordination 
Center activates Emergency Services Function 6 (ESF-6), which provides for 
mass care, emergency assistance, housing and human services. The RAHP 
Consortium will be convened through a meeting of the Joint Recommendations 
Committee (JRC) and any representatives of Consortium Cities that desire to 
attend. The meeting will be convened after the county has been able to gather 
adequate information regarding housing displacement and potential interim 
housing needs as a result of the emergency. The purpose of the JRC meeting will 
be to review the Post-Disaster Interim Housing Annex to the King County 
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, and other available information 
regarding the emergency, and to begin the process to acquire all federal, state, 
private or other disaster funding assistance for housing and related needs available 
to the Consortium. The JRC will also begin the process to determine if the 
Consortium can commit any RAHP Consortium funds or other Consortium funds 
(CDBG, Disaster CDBG, HOME or other federal funds that may be available to 
the King County Consortium through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development) for disaster interim housing efforts. 

28 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 7 of 19 2012-2014 

 

D. Recording - Pursuant to RCW 39.34.040, this Agreement shall be filed with King 
County Records. 

 
 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON   CITY OF ___________________________ 
 
 
_______________________________________ ___________________________________ 
For King County Executive    By: Signature 
 
Jackie MacLean, Director 
Printed Name      Printed Name 
 
Department of Community and Human Services  
       Title 
 
Date       Date 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:     Approved as to Form: 
OFFICE OF THE KING COUNTY   CITY OF ___________________________ 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY   CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
_____________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Michael Sinsky, King County Senior Deputy  City Attorney 
Prosecuting Attorney 
 
       ATTEST: 
       CITY OF ___________________________ 
 
        
             
       ___________________________________ 
       City Clerk 

29 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 8 of 19 2012-2014 

EXHIBIT 1 

King County Regional Affordable Housing Program 

Administrative Guidelines  

 
I. 

The provisions of Substitute House Bill (SHB) 2060 became effective in Washington 

State on June 13, 2002.  

Introduction 

SHB 2060 created a document recording fee on certain documents to be utilized for low 

income housing.  Administration of the fund is shared between local governments and the State.  

The local portion of SHB 2060 funds is to be administered pursuant to a cooperative agreement 

between the county and the cities and towns within King County. 

The work of the Housing Finance Task Force (HFTF), appointed by the King County 

Growth Management Planning Council in 1994, led to the passage of SHB 2060.  In recognition 

of the recommendations made by the HFTF, a Regional Affordable Housing Program 

(RAHP)/2060 Planning Group convenes to plan for the use of King County SHB 2060 funds.  

The King County RAHP/2060 Planning Group1

                                                 
1 City representatives have included staff from the cities of:  Burien, Tukwila, Kent, Federal Way, Redmond, 
Kirkland, Issaquah, Shoreline, Covington, Seatac, Auburn, Seattle, Bellevue and ARCH 

 is made up of city representatives, county 

representatives, and representatives from a variety of private housing and services organizations 

in King County. 

 
Housing and services organization representatives included staff from the following:  Seattle-King County Housing 
Development Consortium, Impact Capital, South King County Multi-Service Center, Hopelink, Fremont Public 
Association, Seattle Habitat for Humanity, South King County Habitat for Humanity, Friends of Youth, the Salvation 
Army, Community Psychiatric Clinic, Lifelong Aids Alliance, St. Andrews Housing Group, Housing Resource 
Group, EDVP, YWCA, Mental Health Housing Foundation, Rental Housing Association, Highline-West Mental 
Health, Valley Cities Counseling, Seattle Emergency Housing Service, Common Ground, and Vietnam Veterans. 
Leadership Program, Compass Center, Catholic Community Services, the King County Housing Authority, Seattle 
Mental Health, and the Committee to End Homelessness 

30 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 9 of 19 2012-2014 

The King County RAHP/2060 Planning Group has designed a regional low income 

housing fund source, to be administered by the King County Housing and Community 

Development Program (HCD) in the Department of Community and Human Services. 

II. 

The RAHP Guidelines shall take effect on January 1, 2007, and shall remain in effect 

until updated through the interjurisdictional Joint Recommendations Committee (JRC). 

Duration of the Guidelines 

III. 

Beginning in 2010, the Guidelines may be updated through the JRC pursuant to the 

RAHP Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, hereinafter “RAHP Agreement”, as needed.  The 

RAHP/2060 Planning Group will be convened to recommend any proposed changes to the 

Guidelines for presentation to the JRC for adoption. 

Review and Update of the Guidelines 

IV. 

A. 

Decision-Making Structure and Regional Allocation Method 

Approving Body – Joint Recommendations Committee.

The JRC, as defined in the RAHP Agreement, shall be the body that reviews and updates 

the RAHP Guidelines beginning in 2010, and reviews and adopts annual RAHP funding 

allocations and related allocation policies.  The JRC will be expanded, pursuant to the RAHP 

Agreement, to include representation from the City of Seattle on RAHP matters.  

   

Allocations and related policies adopted by the JRC must be consistent with these RAHP 

Guidelines, the Consolidated Plans of the King County Consortium and the City of Seattle, other 

local housing plans, as applicable, and the Ten Year Plan to End Homelessness in King County. 

 

1. 

a. Cities – Adoption of Guidelines 

Appeal Process for JRC Decisions 

31 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 10 of 19 2012-2014 

Pursuant to the RAHP Interlocal Agreement, a participating jurisdiction 

may appeal a JRC decision concerning the update of RAHP Guidelines.  The 

jurisdiction must inform the Chair of the JRC, and the JRC chair will schedule 

time on the JRC agenda to discuss the appeal issue. 

b. Applicants – Annual Fund Allocations 

Applicants for RAHP funds may appeal a JRC allocation decision if they 

have grounds based on substantial violation of a fair allocation process, such as 

bias, discrimination, conflict of interest, or failure to follow the RAHP Guidelines.  

Appeals by applicants will receive initial review for adequate grounds by the 

Director of the King County DCHS.  If adequate grounds for an appeal are found, 

the DCHS director will put the appeal on the JRC agenda for review. 

B. 

An interjurisdictional advisory committee to the JRC, made up representatives from 

participating jurisdictions in the RAHP Consortium, will work with the King County Housing 

Finance Program (HFP) staff of King County HCD to make RAHP allocation recommendations 

and related program policy recommendations to the JRC.  While the advisory committee may 

make recommendations concerning several fund sources for affordable housing in the King 

County Consortium, the City of Seattle staff will participate on the committee solely for the 

purpose of making RAHP recommendations. 

Annual Fund Allocation Recommendations 

The review process for RAHP allocations will proceed as follows: 

• King County HCD staff will review all RAHP applications and make preliminary funding 

recommendations. 

• Cities’ staff will review applications for projects in their jurisdiction and make preliminary 

recommendations on those applications. 

32 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 11 of 19 2012-2014 

• Cities’ staff will receive information on all RAHP applications to review prior to the advisory 

committee meeting at which final funding recommendations are formulated for transmittal to 

the JRC. 

• Advisory committee participants will meet together at least annually to decide upon RAHP 

funding recommendations to the JRC, and may meet at other times during the year, as 

necessary, to discuss RAHP issues and make recommendations to the JRC. 

C. 

The RAHP Fund will be a flexible fund that can address regional and subregional housing 

needs.  The fund will use subregional allocation targets as a means to achieve geographic equity 

in the distribution of SHB 2060 funds by the end of each Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 

period. 

Subregional Allocation Targets 

1. 

a. City of Seattle Subregion 

Subregional Areas: 

b. North/East Subregion – north and east urban and rural areas,  

 including 34 percent of unincorporated King County2

c. South Subregion – south urban and rural areas, including 66  

 percent of unincorporated King County 

 

2. 

Each subregion will have a targeted percentage of the RAHP funds, including the 

interest on the RAHP funds, allocated to projects within the subregion over the period of 

time that the RAHP Guidelines are in effect.  Each subregion will receive allocations to 

Formula for Subregional Allocation Targets 

                                                 
2 Percent of unincorporated King County attributed to the North/East and South Subregions is based on the 2000 
census data for households in the unincorporated portions of the King County Community Planning Areas, as listed 
in the 2002 Annual Growth Report. 

33 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 12 of 19 2012-2014 

projects within the subregion that are equal to or greater than 95 percent, of the 

subregions’ allocation target by the end of each Interlocal Cooperation Agreement period. 

The formula for allocating RAHP funds to the subregions is as follows: 

• One half of the RAHP funds shall be targeted for allocation among the three 

subregions based on each subregion’s relative share of total existing need for 

affordable housing.  Existing need shall be determined by the percentage of low-

income households paying more than 30 percent of their income for housing in the 

subregion, according to the 2000 U.S. Census data. 

• One half of the RAHP funds shall be targeted for allocation amongst the three 

subregions based on the subregions' growth targets for future need, as established 

through the Growth Management Planning Council.  Future need shall be determined 

by the subregions' relative share of total future need for affordable housing in the 

County.  A subregion’s relative share of future need is the percentage of the 

subregion’s affordable housing target for low-income households relative to the 

cumulative affordable housing target for low-income households of all jurisdictions in 

the county, including unincorporated King County3

City of Seattle: 37.9 percent 

.  Based upon the RAHP formula, 

the sub-regional allocation targets are as follows: 

South: 32.7 percent 

North/East: 29.4 percent 

                                                 
3 The percentage of a subregion’s target relative to the cumulative target is derived by averaging the target 
percentages of the jurisdictions within that subregion.  For each jurisdiction, the target percentage is calculated in the 
following manner:  the number of households that a jurisdiction must anticipate, per the 2002-2022 Countywide 
Planning Policy (CPP) Growth Target, is multiplied by .24 or .20 (depending on the ratio of low wage jobs to low 
cost housing for the jurisdiction in Appendix 3 of the CPPs); that number is divided by the cummulative affordable 
housing target for low income households of all King County jurisdictions, including unincorporated King County. 

34 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 13 of 19 2012-2014 

3. Interjurisdictional Advisory Committee to Monitor Subregional Allocation 

 

The advisory committee will monitor the subregional distribution of RAHP funds 

every year, determining if any subregion(s) received allocations below 95 percent of the 

subregion’s allocation target. 

Targets 

If any subregion received allocations under 95 percent of the target allocation after 

several funding cycles, the HCD staff will work with the advisory committee to adjust the 

allocation targets of such subregion(s) in the subsequent funding cycles, as needed.  In 

addition, the advisory committee may propose strategies and actions, for review by the 

JRC, that are designed to increase the percentage of RAHP funds spent in those 

subregion(s).  Staff of the jurisdictions that are parties to the RAHP Agreement will assist 

in implementing actions that will aid in achieving geographic equity in RAHP allocations 

by the end of each Interlocal Cooperation Agreement period. 

V. 

A. 

Use of the RAHP Funds in King County 

1. Top Priority:   

RAHP Priorities 

• Capital funds for the acquisition, rehabilitation and/or new construction of 

units of eligible housing types.  New construction is not eligible if the low-

income housing vacancy rate for all of King County exceeds 10 percent4

2. Second Priority:   

. 

• Operations & Maintenance (“O&M”) fund program for existing homeless 

housing5.  This program provides O&M funding for existing6

                                                 
4 The low income housing vacancy rate for each county will be established by the state, pursuant to the SHB 2060 legislation. 

 transitional 

35 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 14 of 19 2012-2014 

housing and transition in place7

3. Third Priority:   

 units.  The housing units must be eligible 

for the Washington State Housing Trust Fund, and must show that they 

require RAHP O&M funds in order to cover ongoing building operating 

expenses. 

• O& M funds for existing emergency shelters and licensed overnight youth 

shelters. 

4. Last priority:   

• Rental assistance vouchers to be administered by a local housing authority 

in conformity with the Section 8 program. 

B. 

1. Eligible Housing Types 

RAHP Eligibility 

a. 

• Permanent rental housing units 

Capital Funds 

• Transition in place and transitional housing units; units that are not  

 time-limited are encouraged. 

• Emergency shelter and licensed overnight youth shelter8

• Ownership housing 

 

 
b. 

 
O&M Funds:  

• Existing transitional and transition in place housing units 

                                                                                                                                                             
5 The O&M fund for the guidelines is set at approximately 22 percent of $3,222,000 (the average of the RAHP collections in 
2004 and 2005), which is $700,000 per year for the four year period of the guidelines. 
6 Existing housing is defined as housing that exists as of the date of an application for RAHP funds. 
7 Transition in place units are permanent rental units where supportive services are provided for a period of time, as needed by a 
household.  Households do not need to move when the supportive services are phased out.  

36 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 15 of 19 2012-2014 

• Existing emergency shelters and licensed overnight youth shelters 

2. Eligible Populations Served by Housing Units 

• All units funded with RAHP funds must serve households at or below 50 

percent of area median income.  Projects that include units for households 

at or below 30 percent of area median income are encouraged. 

• Homeless households9

• Households at risk of homelessness.

, including youth. 

10

• Disabled households or households with a disabled member. 

 

• Families. 

• Special needs populations, including seniors. 

3. Eligible Applicants 

• Nonprofit organizations 

• Housing Authorities 

• Local governments 

• For-profit entities are only eligible for capital funds in the top priority.  

This is due to the language of the SHB 2060 legislation, which restricts 

building operations and maintenance funds to projects “eligible for the 

Washington State Housing Trust Fund.”  For-profit entities are not eligible 

for the Washington State Housing Trust Fund. 

                                                                                                                                                             
8 RAHP funds are limited to 50 percent of the development cost of any project; consequently, if a shelter project cannot secure 
adequate funding for the entire cost of development, the RAHP cannot prioritize the project. 
9 Homeless households include: households that lack a fixed, regular and adequate residence; households that reside in a publicly 
or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living accommodations; households that reside in time-limited 
housing; and households that currently reside in an institution and will be exiting the institution without a fixed, regular and 
adequate residence. 
10 Households at risk of homelessness include: households paying 50 percent or more of their income for rent, households that 
have a history of homelessness and are currently unstable, households living in overcrowded or substandard housing, households 

37 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 16 of 19 2012-2014 

4. Eligible use of RAHP Funds by Priority 

a. Capital funds: 

• Acquisition of land for eligible housing. 

• New construction of eligible housing. 

• Acquisition of building(s) for eligible housing. 

• Rehabilitation of units of eligible housing or to create new units of 

eligible housing. 

• Capitalization of a replacement reserve in connection with a capital 

investment for new or existing eligible housing units. 

• Capitalization of O&M rent buy-down reserves for new eligible 

housing units to serve households below 50 percent of AMI that 

are primarily homeless11, or at risk of homelessness12.  Capitalized 

O&M reserves may only be used to write down rents to very 

affordable rent levels, below 30 percent of AMI and below 50 

percent of AMI (i.e. between 30 percent and 50 percent of AMI,) 

for units that do not have debt service.  Capitalized O&M reserves 

must be used for expenses directly related to running the building 

and may not be used for services to the tenants or to cover debt 

service13

                                                                                                                                                             
that are substantially behind on their monthly housing payment or have a pending eviction, households with a disability whose 
housing is at risk due to aging relatives or other factors. 

.  This eligible use may not exceed 20 percent of the 

RAHP capital funds in any funding cycle. 

11 See Note 6. 
12 See Note 7. 
13 Other requirements for capitalized O&M reserves include:  1) projects will not be eligible for these funds unless they have 
either applied first to CTED for O&M and been denied, or have not received Housing Trust Fund capital dollars and are, 
therefore, not eligible for O&M from CTED; 2) funds will be awarded only in appropriate amounts as neede,d pursuant to review 

38 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 17 of 19 2012-2014 

b. O&M Funds: 

• Existing transition in place or transitional housing units are eligible 

for O&M for ongoing building operations and maintenance 

expenses that cannot be covered by the rental income of the 

project, and may not include the cost of services to tenants or debt 

service. 

• Existing emergency shelters and licensed, overnight youth shelters 

are eligible for O&M for general operating expenses, including 

services. 

 

 

c. 

• Rental assistance vouchers must be administered by a local 

housing authority in conformity with the Section 8 program. 

Vouchers: 

VI. 

The RAHP funds shall be administered as a regional fund by the King County HCD 

Program. 

RAHP Administration 

A. 

RAHP capital funds, including capitalized O&M reserves for new projects and 

maintenance reserves, will be administered by HFP in conjunction with other fund sources 

administered by HFP. 

RAHP Capital Funds 

                                                                                                                                                             
by the Housing Finance Program, and will be subject to negotiated modifications; and 3) capitalized reserves will be committed 
for a maximum of five years’ rent buy-down subsidy. 

39 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 18 of 19 2012-2014 

The HFP will staff the interjurisdictional advisory committee and will work with the 

committee to develop RAHP funding allocation recommendations and related policy 

recommendations for JRC review and adoption. 

The HFP will distribute RAHP funds through contracts pursuant to the allocations 

adopted by the JRC, and will generate an annual RAHP report that provides information about 

the projects that received funding in the current year, as well as the status of projects awarded 

RAHP funds in prior year(s). 

The terms of the King County Housing Opportunity Fund (HOF) will apply to RAHP 

contracts, with the exception of the following: 

• To the extent that there are differences between the HOF guidelines and RAHP 

guidelines, the RAHP guidelines will apply. 

• A financial match by the local government where a housing project is to be 

located is not required, but is encouraged. 

• RAHP funds will have no maximum subsidy per unit, but the development 

portion of the award (not including O&M rent buy-down reserves) will be limited 

to 50 percent of the total development cost of a project. 

B. 

The RAHP O&M funds will be administered through the King County HCD Program’s 

Homeless Housing Programs (HHP) Section. 

RAHP Operating and Maintenance Funds 

The priority for RAHP O&M funds is existing projects that have been unsuccessful in 

receiving State 2060 O&M funds or ESAP funds. 

HHP will work with the Committee to End Homelessness to ensure that the uses of 

RAHP O&M funds are consistent with the priorities of the Ten Year Plan to End Homelessness. 

40 of 114



 

RAHP Interlocal Agreement 19 of 19 2012-2014 

HHP will invite city staff and other stakeholders to participate in updating the RFP 

parameters for O&M funds, if and when updates are necessary, and will invite the same to 

participate on the panel to review applications for the RAHP O&M funds.  The review panel will 

recommend O&M fund awards to the JRC for final adoption. 

 

41 of 114



Consent Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER INTERIM APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
              
ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:   
Planning Commission – Seven Members: 

• One position open for an applicant who resides inside of Covington city limits. 
 
After extension recruitment during the last few months, one Planning Commission position 
remains unfilled for a person living inside the Covington city limits.  Staff will continue to 
advertise for the open position.  Jack Brooks has offered to continue to serve on the Planning 
Commission until December 31, 2011 or until the City Council can find his replacement. 

 
 Name of Applicant      Inside or Outside  
Jack Brooks (1st term expired 8/31/2011)           Resides Inside Covington  
  (Served on Planning Commission 2009-2011 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 25-01 “Membership in the Planning Commission shall be limited to 
residents within the City; provided, however, at any given time the commission may consist of a 
maximum of two members who reside outside the City, but within a three-mile radius of the City 
limits.  No member shall serve longer than two consecutive terms.”   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open position.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint Jack Brooks to fill a position on the Planning Commission 
for an applicant residing inside Covington city limits through December 31, 
2011 or until the City Council appoints his replacement. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  
 Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

42 of 114



    Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PROCESS – CHARTER DISCUSSION 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:   Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Final Draft Charter 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the August 23, 2011 Council meeting, Council was presented with a draft charter of the public 
engagement process to review. Several changes were discussed and suggested revolving around 
the structure of the committee, the name of the committee, and the use of a facilitator.  
 
For structure, suggestions included adding three youth representatives from each of the local 
high schools, restricting the committee to business owners and registered voters, and including 
those who live within three miles of the City limits. The charter now reflects a combination of 
these proposals.    
 
The committee name should reflect the purpose of the committee with that being community 
priorities and budget. Given that foundation staff would like to suggest the Budget Priorities 
Advisory Committee or BPAC.  
 
Staff researched the suggestion of adding a facilitator and contacted Jim Reid. Mr. Reid is 
familiar with the Shoreline model for public engagement and offered some insight as to the role 
of facilitator in the City’s public engagement process. Given the level of experience of staff and 
having a committee chair and vice chair, he noted that a facilitator would be most useful by 
supporting the committee and staff by preparing the agendas, helping to summarize meetings, 
and other administrative functions to help save staff time. The facilitator would not take a 
leadership role in this capacity. For the public meetings however, a facilitator would be most 
helpful in bridging the gap between the committee and the public. This is the role that Mr. Reid 
assisted with in Shoreline. With that in mind staff suggests considering using a facilitator as a 
liaison to assist with public meetings. For regular meetings, staff will assess the time 
involvement and budget and keep the facilitator option open if needed.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Request staff to further revise the charter.  

  
 
 
 

43 of 114



FISCAL IMPACT:   
Potential facilitator costs and staff time. Other expenses such as a citizen survey will be 
addressed during the 2012 budget process.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance            Resolution _____Motion       X   Other 
        

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt the attached charter.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, Management Team 
  

44 of 114



Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Charter 
 
Purpose 

• Educate and engage the community regarding mandated services, discretionary services, 
and the crucial role of the town center 

o Consider community meetings, surveys, social media, and focus groups 

• Provide a report that includes: 

o City needs—both operating and capital 

o The community’s priorities—both operating and capital—within existing revenue 

o The community’s priorities for new revenue 

 The community’s willingness to support new revenue  

 The community’s preferred sources of new revenue 

o Recommendations 

 Include election date(s), if applicable 

Structure 
• 13 – 15 members 

o Significant representation of civic leaders, local business owners, and registered 
voters.   

o May include city advisory commission members but must not include City Council 
members or City staff 

o Shall include one youth representative from each local high school  

• Staff will seek nominations from City Council members, city advisory commission members, 
city staff, chamber of commerce, service clubs, and the community at-large 

• Staff will propose members that represent a wide variety of people and viewpoints, 
including advocates and skeptics 

• Council will consider staff’s recommendations and appoint the committee 

• The committee chair will be selected by the Council 

• The committee will designate a different member as vice chair 

Attachment 1 

45 of 114



• Vacancies may be filled in like manner 

• The city’s finance director will serve as liaison between the committee and staff 

• The city community relations coordinator will assist as applicable 

• City Councilmembers and city staff will not attempt to influence committee 
recommendations 

• The committee will sunset upon issuance of a final report (December 31, 2012), but no later 
than June 30, 2013, if Council chooses to extend the committee’s sunset date 

Duties 
• Meet no less than once per month 

• Abide by the Open Public Meetings Act 

• Make decisions by consensus 

o Make decision by majority vote only when consensus in not possible 

• Keep the community informed 

o Use common language, not government jargon 

o Consider the website, newspaper, newsletter, Facebook, etc. 

• Use limited staff time efficiently i.e. focus on activities with a high return on investment 

• Submit decisions cards for the 2014 budget process as applicable (no later than July 2013). If 
a ballot issue is recommended the timeframe may be earlier depending on the election date 
chosen.   

• Give a verbal report to Council each month during Commission Reports as applicable 

• Prepare a draft report for public review and comment 

• Submit a final report to Council 

o Include minority reports as applicable 

 

46 of 114



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR POLICY DIRECTION ON 

STREET LIGHTS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Resolution on Street Lights Policy 
 
PREPARED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the July 12th City Council meeting staff presented the impact that street lighting costs are 
causing on the City’s Street Fund.  Staff also presented the three current requests for the City to 
take on the maintenance of certain neighborhood street lights.  
 
The City currently pays for its street lights through the Street Fund.  The Street Fund pays for the 
operation and maintenance of the right-of-way including street lights, traffic signals, street 
repairs, sidewalks and landscape maintenance.  The City’s electricity bill, of which 85% is 
attributable to street lights, is currently about 12% of the Street Fund budget.  The City is paying 
the electricity bill on approximately 40% of the street lights within the City.  In the last four 
years the City’s electric bill has more than doubled due to an increase in lighting throughout the 
City as well as power rate increases.  
 
City Council gave staff the direction to create a resolution for its consideration outlining a policy 
on street lighting which specifies that:  

• The City will pay for the power and maintenance of street lights on the main arterial 
streets and all new City capital projects not within a neighborhood. 

• The City will not provide resources toward neighborhood street lighting.  Neighborhoods 
must utilize the options that currently are provided by homeowner’s associations and 
utility districts to maintain street lights.  

 
A resolution is attached for consideration further outlining the policy.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not pass the resolution and give staff further direction on street lighting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Street Fund impacts will include capital projects and rate increases for current inventory only.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X   Resolution        Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution providing for a street light policy.  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 

47 of 114



RESOLUTION NO. 11-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING A STREET LIGHT POLICY. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Covington City Council desires to provide street light services on main 
arterials and areas of dense concentration of commercial and multi-family development for 
traffic and pedestrian safety; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that the City has limited resources to provide 
for the power and maintenance of street lighting outside of the above referenced areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the power and maintenance of street lighting on neighborhood streets may 

be privately provided through other means such as homeowner’s associations and utility districts; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to state a clear street lighting policy to protect City 
resources and provide clear direction to staff and citizens regarding street lighting; now, 
therefore, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 
Washington, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Arterials.  The Covington City Council hereby sets forth a policy that the City 
will provide for the power and maintenance of street lights on main arterial streets within 
Covington.  The following streets are deemed to be a main arterial as provided for in this policy: 
 

• SE 272nd Street (SR 516)  
• SE Wax Road  
• SE 256th Street  
• SE 26nd Street 
• Covington Way SE 
• SE 240th Street 
• 156th Ave SE 
• 160th Ave SE 
• 164th Ave SE 
• 180th Ave SE 
• 165th/168th Place SE 

 
The City reserves the right to modify this list if a street function changes to a higher or lower 
capacity.  
 

Section 2.  New Capital Projects.  The Council also hereby states a policy that the City 
will provide for the power and maintenance of street lighting for all new capital projects 
completed by the City that are not located within a neighborhood.   
 

ATTACHMENT 1

48 of 114



Section 3.  Existing Agreements.  The Council hereby recognizes that the City currently 
pays for the operation and maintenance of some neighborhood street lights according to prior 
agreements and will continue to honor those agreements according to the terms thereof.   

 
Section 4.  Funding.  The Council states its intent that costs associated with the ongoing 

power and maintenance of street lighting pursuant to the policies set forth in Sections 1 - 3 herein 
be funded by the Street Fund.  
 
 Section 5.  Neighborhoods.  The Council hereby states a policy that the City will not 
provide for the power and maintenance of street lights within neighborhoods (except for those 
identified in Section 3 herein).  The Council does recognize the need to provide information to 
citizens on options for privately powering and maintaining street lights within their 
neighborhoods.  The following options have been identified by the City as methods for 
individuals or homeowner’s associations to privately operate and maintain non-arterial street 
lighting (street lighting not operated and maintained by the City): 
 

1. Utility districts may bill homeowners through their utility bills and pay Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE) (the provider of the electricity) directly.  Covington Water District, 
Soos Creek Water and Sewer District, and King County Water District #111 all have 
the authority to provide this service in Covington. 

2. Homeowners may pay for the power and maintenance of street lights in their 
neighborhood through their homeowner’s association.   

3. Puget Sound Energy may bill an entire street light to one individual.  
 
 PASSED in open and regular session on this 13th day of September, 2011. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
          MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

49 of 114



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE GRANTING COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, 
REPLACE AND REPAIR A WATER SYSTEM WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-
WAY OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Franchise Ordinance between City of Covington and Covington Water District 
 
PREPARED BY: Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In October 2006, the City of Covington granted a franchise agreement to the Covington Water 
District to operate a water distribution system within the City right-of-way.  The term of that 
agreement was five years and will end in October 2011.   
 
In early 2011, the Covington Water District and City staff began discussions and review of a new 
agreement.  While there have been no issues with the relationship between Covington Water 
District and the City of Covington as to the operations of the water utility in the public rights-of-
way it was agreed to update the format for clarity and make some changes to how the franchise 
agreement will be implemented. 
 
The major changes to the franchise include:  
Section 1.  (g)  Types of Work:  The work has been divided into three classes of work:  Class A 
(daily operation activities) which requires no permit; Class B (regular scheduled maintenance 
and repair activities) which requires a minor permit; and Class C (repair and capital projects) 
which requires full City permits to undertake the task.   
 
Section 4.  Relocation of Facilities:  Specifying coordination on projects, information sharing on 
perspective projects and cost sharing for relocation of facilities.  
 
Section 9.  Franchise Term:  Increasing the franchise term from five to ten years (end date 
November 30, 2021) and providing a provision for automatic renewal for additional 10 years if 
mutually agreed upon.  
 
The pending outcome of the Lane v. Seattle case will be addressed at the time of the court ruling 
by both parties.  The Lane case is the pending litigation that implies that cites are required to 
provide and pay for the part of the water system that is for fire suppression.   
 
 

50 of 114



 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not approve the ordinance and instruct staff to further negotiate with Covington Water District. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None - Franchise fees will not be assessed as they were not in the last agreement.  This is 
consistent with general practice in the industry as it is rare for Cities to charge Utility Districts 
franchise fees.  In the agreement the City does reserve the right to assess them in the future. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion     X   Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 
 

51 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -1- 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON GRANTING 
COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT A NON-EXCLUSIVE 
FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE 
AND REPAIR A WATER SYSTEM WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-
WAY OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AND 
FIXING A TIME WHEN THE SAME SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Covington Water District, a Washington special purpose municipal corporation 
(“District"), owns water facilities (“Facilities”) located in the City of Covington, a Washington non-
charter municipal code city ("City"), and a portion of such Facilities are located within the City right-of-
way (ROW) as hereinafter defined; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 57.08.005(3) and (5) authorize the District to conduct water throughout the 
District and any city and town therein, and construct and lay facilities along and upon public highways, 
roads and streets within and without the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 35A.47.040 authorizes the City to grant non-exclusive franchises for the use 
of the public streets above or below the surface of the ground by publicly owned and operated water and 
sewer facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and the District have drafted a Franchise Agreement to provide for the 
operation of District Facilities within the City right-of-way; 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Covington do ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Definitions.  Where used in this franchise (the "Franchise") these terms have the 
following meanings: 
 

 (a) "City" means the City of Covington, a Washington Municipal Corporation, and 
its respective successors and assigns. 

 
 (b) "District" means the Covington Water District, a Washington special purpose 
Municipal Corporation, and its respective successors and assigns. 

 
 (c) "Franchise Area" means any, every and all of the roads, streets, avenues, alleys, 
highways and rights-of-way of the City as now laid out, platted, dedicated or improved in 
District's service area within the present corporate boundaries of the City, and as such corporate 
boundaries may be extended within District's service area by annexation or otherwise. 

 
 (d) "Facilities" means tanks, meters, pipes, mains, services, valves, blow-offs, vaults, 
fire hydrants, risers, manholes, generators, electrical control panels, power meters, telephone 
connections, pressure reducing valves ("PRVs"), pump stations, meter stations, lift stations, lines, 
and all other necessary or convenient facilities and appurtenances thereto, whether the same be 
located over or under ground. 
 

(e) "Ordinance" means this Ordinance No. __________, which sets forth the terms 
and conditions of this Franchise. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

52 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -2- 

(f) "Revenue" means income derived by the District from the sale of metered water 
to customers whose connections to the District's water system are located within the City. 
Revenue shall not include: late fees; impact or mitigation fees; any type of connection charges, 
general facilities charges, or local facilities charges; grants; contributed assets (CIAC); loans; 
income from legal settlements not related to water sales to District customers; income from 
telecommunication leases or licenses; income from real property or from real property sales; 
income from the sale of surplus equipment, tools or vehicles; interest income; penalties; hydraulic 
modeling fees; water system extension agreement fees and charges; income from street lights; 
labor, equipment and materials charges; or any other fees and charges.  
 

(g) Types of Work:  Class A, B or C: 
 

“Class A work” means work that has little or no effect on the ROW. Examples of 
Class A work include accessing existing manholes, hand holes and vaults, 
repairing or maintaining hydrants while breaking four (4) square feet or less of 
pavement, raising valves, trimming trees, providing cathodic protection, 
replacing above-ground meters, and installing water sampling stations. A permit 
is not needed for Class A work. 
 
“Class B work” means work that has a moderate effect on the ROW. Examples 
of Class B work include  making an initial pavement cut of between four (4) and 
fifteen (15) square feet, removing two (2) or fewer panels of sidewalk and 
associated curb and gutter, trenching the ROW for twenty-five (25) linear feet or 
less outside the paved area, installing short side utility services while disturbing 
between four (4) and fifteen (15) square feet of pavement, pushing under a road 
for pipe-bursting / pipe replacement work, and installing underground vaults.  
The permit requirements, if any, for Class B work shall be determined by the 
City on a case-by-case basis. Any Class B work requiring traffic control or 
inspection shall require a permit. A programmatic permit may be issued by the 
City for low-impact and routine Class B work including, but not limited to, 
flushing.  
 
“Class C work” means work that has a major impact on the ROW. Examples of 
Class C work includes constructing any capital related work, installation of 100 
linear feet or more of underground utility piping within the ROW or attaching to 
any bridge structure, and constructing a main line or any open cut road crossing.  
A permit is always necessary for Class C work. 

 
Any work to be performed on SE 272nd (Kent Kangley Road) shall be classified only as either Class B or 
Class C work. 
 
 Section 2.  Franchise. 
 
 A. Facilities within Franchise Area.  The City does hereby grant to District the right, 
privilege, authority and franchise to construct, install, lay, support, attach, maintain, repair, renew, 
replace, remove, enlarge, operate and use Facilities in, upon, over, under, along, through and across the 
Franchise Area for purposes of its water utility functions as defined in Title 57 RCW beginning on the 
Effective Date of this Ordinance. 
 
 B. Maintenance of Facilities within Franchise Area.  The City does hereby grant to District 
the right, privilege, authority and franchise to maintain and operate its facilities located in, upon, over, 

53 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -3- 

under, along, through and across the Franchise Area.  Activities may include, but not be limited, to 
flushing, hydrant exercise and other non-contractor maintenance work.  This type of work shall be 
considered Class B work pursuant to Section 1(g). 
 
 C. Permission Required to Enter Onto Other City Property.  Nothing contained in this 
Ordinance is to be construed as granting permission to District to go upon any other public place other 
than those types of public places specifically designated as the Franchise Area in this Ordinance.  
Permission to go upon any other property owned or controlled by the City must be sought on a case-by-
case basis from the City. 
 
 D. Compliance with Laws and Regulations.  At all times during the term of this Franchise, 
District shall fully comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 
 
 E. Exclusive Operation of Water System.  The City hereby grants the District the exclusive 
right to operate a water system. 
 
 Section 3.  Non-interference of Facilities. 
 

A. District's Facilities shall be located, relocated and maintained within the Franchise Area 
so as not to unreasonably interfere with the free and safe passage of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and 
ingress or egress to or from the abutting property and in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  Nothing herein shall preclude District from effecting temporary road closures as reasonably 
necessary during construction or maintenance of its Facilities provided District receives prior City 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
 B. Whenever it is necessary for District, in the exercise of its rights under this Franchise, to 
make any excavation in the Franchise Area, District shall, upon completion of such excavation, restore 
the surface of the Franchise Area to City standards and at least to the same condition existing prior to any 
such excavation, installation, construction, relocation, maintenance or repair. Survey monuments shall not 
be removed or destroyed without the District first obtaining the required Department of Natural Resources 
(DNR) permit in accordance with RCW 58.09.130 and WAC 332-120-030. All survey monuments, which 
have been distributed or displaced by such work, shall be restored pursuant to all federal, state and local 
standards and specifications. District agrees to promptly complete all restoration work and to promptly 
repair any damage caused by such work at its sole expense.  
 
If it is determined that the District has failed to restore the right-of-way in accordance with this Section, 
the City shall provide the District with written notice, which shall include a description of actions the City 
believes necessary to restore the right-of-way. If the right-of-way is not restored in accordance with the 
City's notice within fifteen (15) days of that notice, or such longer period as may be specified in the 
notice, the City, or its authorized agent, may restore the right-of-way and District shall be responsible for 
all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the City in restoring the right-of-way in accordance with 
this Section. The rights granted to the City under this Section shall be in addition to those otherwise 
provided by this Franchise.  
 
 Section 4.  Relocation of Facilities. 
 
 A. Whenever the City causes the grading or widening of the Franchise Area or undertakes 
construction of storm drainage lines, lighting, signalization, sidewalk improvement, pedestrian amenities, 
or other public street improvements (for purposes other than those described in Section 4(B) below) and 
such project requires the relocation of District's then existing Facilities within the Franchise Area, the 
City shall: 

54 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -4- 

 
(1) Pursuant to RCW 35.21.905, or as amended, consult with District in the 

predesign phase of any such project in order to coordinate the project's design 
with District Facilities within such project's area; and 
 

(2) Provide District, at least one hundred eighty (180)  days prior to the 
commencement of such project, written notice that a project is expected to 
require relocation; and 

 
(3) Provide District with reasonably accurate and specific plans and specifications 

for such grading, widening, or construction and a proposed new location within 
the Franchise Area for District's Facilities. 

 
(4) Provide information to the District regarding street overlay projects for the 

opportunity to adjust valves located or to adjust valves that are deemed a traffic 
issue by the City.   Valve adjustment is considered Class B work and a permit is 
not normally required, unless the project is part of a larger road repair or 
construction job.  The permit will be obtained by the entity serving as the lead 
agency for the project.  

 
(5) Enter an Interlocal Agreement with the District for the coordination and 

allocation of costs of work accomplished through competitive bidding when it is 
deemed efficient and cost effective for citizens and ratepayers of the two 
municipalities to complete construction work under one contract. 

 
After receipt of such notice and such plans and specifications, District shall relocate such Facilities within 
the Franchise Area so as to accommodate such street and utility improvement project; provided, however, 
District may, after receipt of written notice requesting a relocation of its Facilities, submit to the City 
written alternatives to such relocations.  The City shall within a reasonable time evaluate such alternatives 
and advise District in writing whether one or more of the alternatives is suitable to accommodate work 
that would otherwise necessitate relocation of the Facilities.  If so requested by the City, District shall 
submit such additional information as is reasonably necessary to assist the City in making such 
evaluation.  The City shall give each alternative full and fair consideration.  In the event the City 
ultimately reasonably determines that there is no other reasonable or feasible alternative, then District 
shall relocate its Facilities as otherwise provided in this Section 4.  The City shall cooperate with District 
to designate a substitute location for its Facilities within the Franchise Area.  City will establish a date by 
which Facilities will be relocated, which date will be not less than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
written notice to District as to the facility to be relocated.  District must finish relocation of each such 
Facility by the date so established.  The cost of relocating such Facilities existing within the Franchise 
Area shall be paid as follows: 
 

(I) if the relocation occurs within six (6) years after District initially constructed 
such Facility, then the relocation shall be at the City’s sole cost, except as 
otherwise provided below relating to phased projects; 

(II) if the relocation occurs more than six (6) years but within ten (10) years after 
District initially constructed such Facility, then the City shall pay fifty percent 
(50%) of the cost of such relocation and District shall pay the remaining fifty 
percent (50%); and  

(III) if the relocation occurs more than ten (10) years after District initially 
constructed such Facility, then the relocation shall be at District's sole cost. 

55 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -5- 

(IV) For the purpose of planning, District and the City shall provide each other with a 
copy of their respective current adopted Capital Improvement Plan annually and 
upon request by the other party. 

 
The City and District agree that phased projects require special treatment in order to avoid potential 
inequities in the assignment of relocation costs when Facilities installed as part of a planned phased 
project need to be relocated within the 6-year period described in subparagraph (I) above.  In situations 
where a subsequent phase of a project requires a modification to Facilities constructed during an earlier 
phase of the same project within the referenced 6-year period, the parties agree that the City shall not be 
responsible for relocation costs associated with modifications to, or replacements of, the first forty (40) 
feet of water pipe (i.e., two lengths of standard length pipe) that were installed in an earlier phase of the 
project.  The City and District acknowledge that this special rule relating to phased projects will help 
facilitate the efficient planning and implementation of phased projects. 
 
 B. Whenever any person or entity, other than the City, requires the relocation of District's 
Facilities to accommodate the work of such person or entity within the Franchise Area, or whenever the 
City requires the relocation of District's Facilities within the Franchise Area for the benefit of any person 
or entity other than the City, then District shall have the right as a condition of such relocation to require 
such person or entity to: 
 

(1) make payment to District at a time and upon terms acceptable to District for any and 
all costs and expense incurred by District in the relocation of District's Facilities; and 

 
(2) protect, defend, indemnify and save District harmless from any and all claims and 

demands made against it on account of injury or damage to the person or property of 
another arising out of or in conjunction with the relocation of District's Facilities, to 
the extent such injury or damage is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of 
the person or entity requesting the relocation of District's Facilities or other 
negligence or willful misconduct of the agents, servants or employees of the person 
or entity requesting the relocation of District's Facilities. 

 
 C. This Section 4 shall govern all relocations of District's Facilities required in accordance 
with this Franchise.  Any cost or expense in connection with the location or relocation of any Facilities 
existing under benefit of easement or other rights not in the Franchise Area shall be borne by the City, 
provided the City obtains the District's prior consent to such location or relocation.   
 
 D. District recognizes the need for the City to maintain adequate width for installation and 
maintenance of City owned utilities such as, but not limited to, sanitary sewer, water, storm drainage and 
telecommunication facilities.  Thus, the City reserves the right to maintain reasonable clear zones within 
the public right-of-way for installation and maintenance of said utilities.  The clear zones for each right-
of-way segment shall be noted and conditioned with the issuance of each right-of-way permit.  If 
adequate clear zones are unable to be achieved on a particular right-of-way, District shall locate in an 
alternate right-of-way, obtain easements from private property owners, or propose alternate construction 
methods, which maintain and/or enhance the existing clear zones. 
 

E. For the purpose of this Section 4, a project or improvement is considered to be caused by 
the City (as described in 4(A) above) if it is permitted by the City and either of the following conditions 
exist: 

 
(1) the City is lead agency for the project or improvement, and 

56 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -6- 

(2) the City is responsible for over 50% of the overall costs of said improvement or 
project, which 50%, if applicable, includes any grant money received from another 
entity for the project.  

 Section 5.  Planning Coordination. 

 A. Growth Management. The parties agree to participate in the development of, and 
reasonable updates to, the other party's planning documents as follows:  

  1. For District's service area within the City limits, District will participate in a 
cooperative effort with the City to develop a Comprehensive Plan Utilities Element that meets the 
requirements described in RCW 36.70A.070(4).  

  2. District will participate in a cooperative effort with the City to ensure that the 
Utilities Element of City's Comprehensive Plan is accurate as it relates to District's operations and is 
updated to ensure continued relevance at reasonable intervals.  

  3. District shall submit information related to the general location, proposed 
location, and capacity of all existing and proposed Facilities within the City as requested by the City 
within a reasonable time, not exceeding sixty (60) days from receipt of a written request for such 
information, provided that such information is in the District's possession, or can be reasonably developed 
from the information in the District's possession.  

  4. The City will provide information relevant to the District's operations within a 
reasonable period of written request to assist the District in the development or update of its 
Comprehensive Water Plan, provided that such information is in the City's possession, or can be 
reasonably developed from the information in the City's possession. 

 B. System Development Information. District and City shall each assign a representative 
whose responsibility shall be to coordinate planning for CIP projects including those that involve 
undergrounding. At a minimum, such coordination shall include:  

  1. By February 1st of each year, District shall provide the City with a schedule of its 
planned capital improvements which may affect the right-of-way for that year.  

  2. By February 1st of each year, City shall provide the District with a schedule of its 
planned capital improvements which may affect the right-of-way for that year including but not limited to 
street overlays and repairs, storm drainage improvements and construction, and all other right-of-way 
activities that could affect District capital improvements and infrastructure.  

  3. District shall meet with the City, and other franchisees and users of the right-of-
way, as necessary, to schedule and coordinate construction activities.  

  4. All construction locations, activities, and schedules shall be coordinated to 
minimize public inconvenience, disruption or damages.  

  5. The City and the District agree to cooperate in the planning and implementation 
of emergency operations response procedures.  

  6. Without charge to either party, both parties agree to provide each other with as-
built plans, maps and records that show the vertical and horizontal location of its facilities within right-of-

57 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -7- 

way, measured from the center line of the right-of-way, using a minimum scale of one inch equals one 
hundred feet (1"=100'). Maps shall be provided in Geographical Information System (GIS) or other 
digital electronic format used by the City or the District, and upon request, in hard copy plan form used 
by City or District.  

 Section 6.  Indemnification. 
 
 A. District shall indemnify, defend and hold the City, its agents, officers, employees, 
volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liability, loss, cost, 
damage or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all costs and attorney's fees, made against them 
on account of injury, sickness, death or damage to persons or property which is caused by or arises out of, 
in whole or in part, the willful, tortious or negligent acts, failures and/or omissions of District or its 
agents, servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors or assigns in the construction, operation or 
maintenance of its Facilities or in exercising the rights granted District in this Franchise; provided, 
however, such indemnification shall not extend to injury or damage to the extent caused by the negligence 
or willful misconduct of the City, its agents, officers, employees, volunteers or assigns; provided further, 
this indemnity provision shall not be construed to be a waiver of any legal obligation or duty District may 
have to charge the City and any legal obligation or duty the City may have to pay for the cost of fire 
hydrants and related fire suppression services and facilities provided by District within the Franchise 
Area, nor shall this indemnity provision be construed to be a waiver of any legal obligation or duty 
District may have to charge the City for any services District may provide the City which are determined 
in the future to be a governmental function which the City should provide or pay for. 
 
 B. City shall indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, officers, employees, 
volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liability, loss, cost, 
damage or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all costs and attorney's fees, made against them 
on account of injury, sickness, death or damage to persons or property which is caused by or arises out of, 
in whole or in part, the willful, tortious or negligent acts, failures and/or omissions of City or its agents, 
servants, employees, contractors, subcontractors or assigns in the City's performance, administration and 
operation of this Franchise or in exercising the rights granted City in this Franchise;  provided, however, 
such indemnification shall not extend to injury or damage to the extent caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the District, its agents, officers, employees, volunteers or assigns. 
 
 C. In the event any such claim or demand be presented to or filed with the District or the 
City arising out of or relating to the acts or omissions in whole or in part to the other party, the party shall 
promptly notify the other party thereof, and the party shall have the right, at its election and at its sole cost 
and expense, to settle and compromise such claim or demand. 
 
 D. City hereby releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, 
officers, employees, volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 
judgments, awards or liability to any person arising from District's compliance with this Franchise. 
 
 E. City hereby releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District, its agents, 
officers, employees, volunteers and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, 
judgments, awards or liability to any person arising from City's decision to issue development permits 
based on accurate information on fire flow and water availability provided by District or the City's 
enforcement of the International Fire Code. 
 
 F. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Franchise is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 
property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of City and District, their officers, 

58 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -8- 

employees and agents, District's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of District's negligence. It is 
further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
parties' waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this 
indemnification.  
 
 Section 7.  Default.  If District shall fail to comply with any of the provisions of this Franchise, 
unless otherwise provided for herein, the City may serve upon District a written order to so comply within 
thirty (30) days from the date such order is received by District.  If District is not in compliance with this 
Franchise after expiration of said thirty (30) day period, the City may act to remedy the violation and may 
charge the costs and expenses of such action to District.  The City may act without the thirty (30) day 
notice in case of an emergency.  The City may in addition, by ordinance adopted no sooner than five (5) 
days after notice of the City Council hearing (at which District will have an opportunity to be heard) on 
the impending ordinance is given to District, declare an immediate forfeiture of this Franchise, provided, 
however, if any material failure to comply with this Franchise by District cannot be corrected with due 
diligence within said thirty (30) day period (District's obligation to comply and to proceed with due 
diligence being subject to unavoidable delays and events beyond its control, in which case the time within 
which District may so comply shall be extended for such time as may be reasonably necessary and so 
long as District commences promptly and diligently to effect such compliance), provided good faith 
dispute does not exist concerning such compliance. 
 
In addition to other remedies provided herein, if District is not in compliance with requirements of the 
Franchise, and if a good faith dispute does not exist concerning such compliance, the City may place a 
moratorium on issuance of pending District right-of-way use permits until compliance is achieved. 
 
 Section 8.  Non-exclusive Franchise.  This Franchise is not and shall not be deemed to be an 
exclusive Franchise.  This Franchise shall not in any manner prohibit the City from granting other and 
further franchises over, upon, and along the Franchise Area, which do not interfere with District's rights 
under this Franchise.  This Franchise shall not prohibit or prevent the City from using the Franchise Area 
or affect the jurisdiction of the City over the same or any part thereof. 
 
 Section 9.  Franchise Term.  Subject to the provisions of Section 10 and 11 below, this Franchise 
is and shall remain in full force and effect from its Effective Date as defined in Section 26 herein until 
November 30, 2021, and on November 30 every ten (10) years thereafter, the term shall automatically be 
extended for an additional ten (10) years, unless either District or the City gives the other party written 
notice of non-renewal prior to any such renewal date, in which case this Franchise shall terminate ten (10) 
years after such renewal date; however, District shall have no rights under this Franchise nor shall District 
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise unless District shall, within thirty (30) days after 
the passage date of the Ordinance referred to in Section 28 herein, file with the City its written acceptance 
of this Franchise, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. 
 
 Section 10.  Compliance with Codes and Regulations. 
 
 A. The rights, privileges and authority herein granted are subject to and governed by this 
ordinance and all other applicable City ordinances and codes, as they now exist or may hereafter be 
amended, provided the City shall not unreasonably affect or modify any portion of this Franchise without 
District's written approval.  Nothing in this ordinance limits the City's lawful power to exercise its police 
power to protect the safety and welfare of the general public.  Any location, relocation, erection or 
excavation by District shall be performed by District in accordance with applicable federal, state and city 
rules and regulations, including the City Public Works Policies and Pre-approved Plans, and any required 
permits, licenses or regulatory fees, and applicable safety standards then in effect or any Memorandum of 
Understanding with District. 

59 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -9- 

 
 B. In the event that any territory served by District is annexed to the City after the effective 
date of this Franchise, this franchise agreement shall be deemed to be the new agreement required to be 
granted to a franchisee in annexed territory by RCW 35A.14.900 for whatever period of time is then 
required under that statute or the remaining time left under this franchise agreement for the Franchise 
Area, whichever is longer.  Such territory shall then be governed by the terms and conditions contained 
herein upon the effective date of such annexation. 
 
 Section 11.  Location of Facilities and Equipment.  With the exception of components that are 
traditionally installed above ground such as fire hydrants, blow-offs, vault lids, risers, manhole covers, 
generators, electrical control panels, power meters, telephone connections,  and utility markers, all 
Facilities and equipment to be installed within the Franchise Area shall be installed underground; 
provided, however, that such Facilities may be installed above ground if so authorized by the City, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, consistent with the provisions 
of the City's Land Use Code and applicable development pre-approved plans. 
 
 Section 12.  Record of Installations and Service.  With respect to excavations by District and the 
City within the Franchise Area, District and the City shall each comply with their respective obligations 
pursuant to Chapter 19.122 RCW, and as such statute may be modified and amended, and any other 
applicable state law. 
 
Upon written request of the City, District shall provide the City with the most recent update available of 
any plan of potential improvements to its Facilities within the Franchise Area; provided, however, any 
such plan so submitted shall only be for informational purposes within the Franchise Area, nor shall such 
plan be construed as a proposal to undertake any specific improvements within the Franchise Area. 
 
Upon written request of District, the City shall provide District with the most recent update available of 
any plan of potential improvements to its Facilities located within the Franchise Area; provided, however, 
any such plan so submitted shall only be for informational purposes within the Franchise Area, nor shall 
such plan be construed as a proposal to undertake any specific improvements within the Franchise Area. 
 
As-built drawings of the precise location of any Facilities placed by District in any street, alley, avenue, 
highway, easement, etc., shall be made available to the City within ten (10) working days of request. 
 
 Section 13.  Shared Use of Excavations.  District and the City shall exercise best efforts to 
coordinate construction work either may undertake within the Franchise Area so as to promote the orderly 
and expeditious performance and completion of such work as a whole.  Such efforts shall include, at a 
minimum, reasonable and diligent efforts to keep the other party and other utilities within the Franchise 
Areas informed of its intent to undertake such construction work.  District and the City shall further 
exercise best efforts to minimize any delay or hindrance to any construction work undertaken by 
themselves or other utilities within the Franchise Area. 
 
If at any time, or from time to time, either District, the City, or another franchisee, shall cause excavations 
to be made within the Franchise Area, the party causing such excavation to be made shall afford the 
others, upon receipt of a written request to do so, an opportunity to use such excavation, provided that: 
 

 (a) no statutes, laws, regulations or ordinances prohibit or restrict the proximity of 
other utilities or facilities to District's Facilities installed or to be installed within the area to be 
excavated;  

 

60 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -10- 

 (b) Such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the party causing the 
excavation to be made; 
 
 (c) Such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and conditions 
satisfactory to both parties.  The parties shall each cooperate with other utilities in the Franchise 
Area to minimize hindrance or delay in construction. 

 
The City reserves the right to not allow open trenching for five (5) years following a street overlay or 
improvement project.  District shall be given written notice at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to 
the commencement of the project.  Required trenching due to an emergency will not be subject to five (5) 
year street trenching moratoriums. 
 
The City reserves the right to require District to joint trench with other facilities if both parties are 
anticipating trenching within the same portion of the Franchise Area and provided that the terms of (a), 
(b) and (c) above are met. 
 
 Section 14.  Insurance. District shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this 
Franchise, a minimum of One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00) liability insurance for property damage 
and bodily injury. 
 
The City shall be named as an additional insured on any policy of liability insurance obtained by District 
for the purpose of complying with the requirements of this Section. 
 
 Section 15.  Vacation of Franchise Area. If the City determines to vacate any right-of-way which 
is part of the Franchise Area where District Facilities are located or maintained, any ordinance vacating 
such right-of-way shall provide and condition such vacation on District obtaining at no cost to District a 
perpetual easement in such vacated right-of-way for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair and 
replacement of its facilities located and to be located in such vacated right-of-way. 
 
 Section 16.  Assignment.  All of the provisions, conditions, and requirements herein contained 
shall be binding upon District, and no right, privilege, license or authorization granted to District 
hereunder may be assigned or otherwise transferred without the prior written authorization and approval 
of the City, which the City may not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay, provided that a merger or 
consolidation of District with or into another Title 57 RCW water-sewer district shall not be considered 
an assignment for the purposes of this provision and shall not be subject to the City's approval. 
 
 Section 17.  Notice.  Unless applicable law requires a different method of giving notice, any and 
all notices, demands or other communications required or desired to be given hereunder by any party 
(collectively, "notices") shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to another party if delivered 
either personally or by Federal Express or other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, or if 
deposited in the United States Mail, certified, registered, or express mail with postage prepaid, or if sent 
by facsimile transmission with electronic confirmation.  If such notice is personally delivered, it shall be 
conclusively deemed given at the time of such delivery.  If such notice is delivered by Federal Express or 
other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, it shall be deemed given one (1) business day 
after the deposit thereof with such delivery service.  If such notice is mailed as provided herein, such shall 
be deemed given three (3) business days after the deposit thereof in the United States Mail.  If such notice 
is sent by facsimile transmission, it shall be deemed given at the time of the sender's receipt of electronic 
confirmation.  Each such notice shall be deemed given only if properly addressed to the party to whom 
such notice is to be given as follows: 
 

61 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -11- 

To City: City Clerk 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA  98042 
253-638-1110 
 

To District : 
 
 
 
 
 
With copy to: 
 

General Manager 
Covington Water District 
18631 SE 300th Place 
Covington, WA  98042 
253-631-0565 
 
General Counsel 
Inslee, Best, Doezie & Ryder, PS 
Symetra Financial Center 
Suite 1900 
777 - 108th Avenue N.E. 
Bellevue, WA 98009 

 
Any party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notices as herein provided by a 
written notice given in the manner aforesaid to the other party hereto. 
 
 Section 18.  Severability.  If any term, provision, condition or portion of this Franchise shall be 
held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Franchise, 
which shall continue in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 19.  Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to enforce any breach or violation by the 
other party or any provision of this Franchise shall not be deemed to be a waiver or a continuing waiver 
by the non-breaching party of any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other provision of 
this Franchise.  
 
 Section 20.  Alternate Dispute Resolution.  If the parties are unable to resolve disputes arising 
from the terms of this Franchise, prior to resorting to a court of competent jurisdiction, the parties shall 
submit the dispute to a non-binding alternate dispute resolution process agreed to by the parties. Unless 
otherwise agreed upon between the parties or determined herein, the cost of that process shall be shared 
equally. 
 
 Section 21.  Governing Law/Venue.  This Franchise shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Washington. Any suit to enforce or relating to this Agreement shall only be filed in King County Superior 
Court, King County, Washington. 
 
 Section 22. Entire Agreement.  This Franchise constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 
between the parties as to the subject matter herein and no other agreements or understandings, written or 
otherwise, shall be binding upon the parties upon execution and acceptance hereof.  
 
 Section 23.  Amendment.  This Franchise may be amended only by written instrument, signed by 
both parties, which specifically states that it is an amendment to this Franchise, and is approved and 
executed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, this Franchise (including, without limitation, Section 6 above) shall govern and supersede and 
shall not be changed, modified, deleted, added to, supplemented or otherwise amended by any permit, 
approval, license, agreement or other document required by or obtained from the City in conjunction with 

62 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -12- 

the exercise (or failure to exercise) by District of any and all rights, benefits, privileges, obligations, or 
duties in and under this Franchise, unless such permit, approval, license, agreement or document 
specifically: 
 

 (a) references this Franchise; and 
 

 (b) states that it supersedes this Franchise to the extent it contains terms and 
conditions which change, modify, delete, add to, supplement or otherwise amend the terms and 
conditions of this Franchise. 

 
In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Franchise and the provisions 
of any such permit, approval, license, agreement or other document that does not comply with subsections 
(a) and (b) referenced immediately above, the provisions of this Franchise shall control. 
  
 Section 24.  Directions to City Clerk. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to forward 
certified copies of this ordinance to the District as set forth in this ordinance. District shall have thirty (30) 
days from the receipt of the certified copy of this ordinance to accept in writing the terms of the Franchise 
granted to the District by this ordinance.  
 
 Section 25.  District Acceptance of Franchise. District shall have no rights under this Franchise 
nor shall District be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise unless District shall, within thirty 
(30) days after the effective date of the ordinance, file with the City its written acceptance of this 
Franchise. 
 
 Section 26.  Effective Date. This ordinance, being an exercise of a power specifically delegated to 
the City legislative body, is not subject to referendum, and shall take effect five (5) days after passage and 
publication of an approved summary thereof consisting of the title ("Effective Date").  
 
 Section 27.  Superseding Clause. This ordinance supersedes any and all other franchise 
agreements, ordinances, and/or resolutions between the City and District.  

 
 Passed by the City Council on the 13th day of September, 2011. 

 
 
_______________________ 
Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE:    

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney

63 of 114



CWD – City of Covington 2011 -13- 

UNCONDITIONAL ACCEPTANCE OF CITY FRANCHISE 

I, the undersigned official of Covington Water District, am authorized to bind Covington Water District 
and to unconditionally accept the terms and conditions of the foregoing Franchise (Ordinance No. 
__________), which are hereby accepted by Covington Water District.  

I certify that this Franchise and all terms and conditions thereof are accepted without qualification or 
reservation. 

DATED this ______ day of ___________________________, 2011. 

By:_____________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

Title: ___________________________________ 

 

Witness: ________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

64 of 114



Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE GRANT 

FUNDING PROJECT AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF COVINGTON 
COMMUNITY PARK. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed WWRP Project Agreement. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In May 2010 the City Council authorized staff to apply for grants to fund construction of phase 
one of Covington Community Park.  The application to the Washington State Recreation and 
Conservation Office (RCO) in the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP) was 
highly ranked and subsequently funded by the State Legislature.  Approving this motion 
authorizes the City Manager to sign the Project Agreement, thus providing $500,000 toward the 
construction cost of the park, and also creating significant obligations. 
 
In signing this agreement the city is committing to build and maintain the park and accept certain 
perpetual obligations.  The project description in the agreement states that the project is to 
construct a community park that meets the high priority recreation needs of a young and growing 
community by expanding the trail system, adding a multi-purpose sports field and providing a 
location for community events.  The project also includes associated road improvements, parking 
and ADA compliant portable toilets. 
 
This contract creates ongoing obligations in perpetuity.  The agreement stipulates that project 
facilities, such as the soccer field, trails and parking lot cannot be converted to other uses during 
their normal operating life.  We are required to maintain the facilities in a safe condition 
throughout their life to prevent undue deterioration and so they appear attractive and inviting to 
the public.  We must also construct in compliance with all state and federal codes, such as the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and the International Building Code.   
 
The property and facilities must be available to the general public without reservation at 
reasonable hours and times of the year, according to the type of area or facility.  As such, we can 
schedule the soccer field on a reservation basis.  Fees can be charged, to use the soccer field for 
example, however revenue can only be used to offset the capital or operating cost of this project 
or for a similar facility.  We are allowed to charge differential fees based on residency. 
 
The timeline for the project is to complete design and bid specifications by the end of this year, 
bid the project in the winter of 2012, with construction completed by fall 2012.  The park outside 
the construction zone will remain open during construction.  When construction is completed the 

65 of 114



entire park will reopen, except the soccer field will remain closed until summer 2013 to allow the 
grass roots time to get established.   
 
Construction of new facilities, such as the soccer field, trails and parking lot, create a significant 
new ongoing need for maintenance in perpetuity.  The ongoing cost for maintenance is projected 
to be $137,000 per year.  This amount of work can’t be absorbed by existing maintenance staff, 
and due to declining city revenues we do not currently have sufficient revenue in the Parks Fund 
to absorb this new expense.  The declining city revenues have also created a gap in the money in 
the parks CIP that the city needs to match the grant funds.  While the grant picture is becoming 
clearer, we are still working to identify funds for capital and maintenance.  Before the project can 
proceed, it will be necessary to close the gap in capital and to identify a new ongoing source of 
revenue to the Parks Fund to cover the cost of maintenance.  The capital budget, the maintenance 
cost estimate, and possible sources of additional funding will be discussed in detail during the 
budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract at this time.  If capital and 
maintenance funding are not approved as part of the budget we will need to terminate this 
contract.  Terminating the contract will have a negative effect on future grant 
applications.   

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract after the budget process.  Delaying 
execution of this contract until late November or December is low performance from the 
granting agency’s point of view and leaves the funding vulnerable to be re-appropriated. 

3. Do not authorize the City Manager to execute the contract.  The WWRP grant is a 
necessary component of construction funding for Covington Community Park.  If the 
Project Agreement is not approved, the city cannot proceed with construction. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Revenue from the grant is $500,000.  The total project cost listed in the grant contract is 
$1,583,766.  Additional city funds, along with grant funds such as King County Youth Sports 
Facility Grants (YSFG), King Conservation District (KCD) and the Washington State 
Department of Commerce, will also be utilized on this project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion       X    Other 
 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, Public Works Director, Finance Director, City 
Attorney, City Manager 
 

66 of 114



ATTACHMENT 1

67 of 114



68 of 114



69 of 114



70 of 114



71 of 114



72 of 114



73 of 114



74 of 114



75 of 114



76 of 114



77 of 114



78 of 114



79 of 114



80 of 114



81 of 114



82 of 114



83 of 114



84 of 114



85 of 114



86 of 114



Agenda Item 5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: September 13, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE GRANT 

FUNDING CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE SOCCER FIELD AT 
COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Youth Sports Facility Grant Contract. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In June 2010 the City partnered with Kent Youth Soccer Association (KYSA) to apply for King 
County Youth Sports Facility Grant (YSFG) to help fund construction of the soccer field at 
Covington Community Park.  The application was successful and the project is included in King 
County’s 2011 budget.  Approving this motion authorizes the City Manager to sign the grant 
contract, thus providing $75,000 toward the construction cost of the soccer field and associated 
infrastructure, and also creating significant obligations. 
 
In signing this agreement the city is committing to build and maintain the park and accept certain 
long term obligations.  The project must be maintained in good working condition and available 
for use by the general public for a period of 15 years, without imposing any unreasonable 
requirements, and with priority given to persons under the age of 21.  Fees may be charged but 
shall be no greater than those charged by similar facilities.  We must comply with all applicable 
laws, specifically prevailing wages, WISHA, competitive bidding, and ADA. 
 
The timeline for the project is to complete design and bid specifications by the end of this year, 
bid the project in the winter of 2012, with construction completed by fall 2012.  The park outside 
the construction zone would remain open during construction.  Upon completion the entire park 
will reopen, except the soccer field will remain closed until summer 2013 to allow the grass roots 
time to get established. 
 
Construction of new facilities, such as the soccer field, trails and parking lot, create a significant 
new ongoing need for maintenance in perpetuity.  The ongoing cost for maintenance is projected 
to be $137,000 per year.  This amount of work can’t be absorbed by existing maintenance staff, 
and due to declining city revenues we do not currently have sufficient revenue in the Parks Fund 
to absorb this new expense.  The declining city revenues have also created a gap in the money in 
the parks CIP that the city needs to match the grant funds.  While the grant picture is becoming 
clearer, we are still working to identify funds for capital and maintenance.  Before the project can 
proceed, it will be necessary to close the gap in capital and to identify a new ongoing source of 
revenue to the Parks Fund to cover the cost of maintenance.  The capital budget, the maintenance 

87 of 114



cost estimate, and possible sources of additional funding will be discussed in detail during the 
budget process.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract at this time.  If capital and 
maintenance funding are not approved as part of the budget we will need to terminate this 
contract.  Terminating the contract will have a negative effect on future grant 
applications.   

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract after the budget process.  Delaying 
execution of this contract until late November or December is low performance from the 
granting agency’s point of view and leaves the funding vulnerable to be re-appropriated. 

3. Do not authorize the City Manager to execute the contract.  The WWRP grant is a 
necessary component of construction funding for Covington Community Park.  If the 
Project Agreement is not approved, the city cannot proceed with construction. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Revenue from the grant is $75,000.  The total cost of the project is listed in the grant contract as 
$1,673,099.  Additional city funds and grant funds, such as Washington Wildlife and Recreation 
Program (WWRP) grant, King Conservation District and the Washington State Department of 
Commerce, among others, will also be utilized on this project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion     X    Other 
 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, Public Works Director, Finance Director, City 
Attorney, City Manager 
 
 

88 of 114



ATTACHMENT 1

89 of 114



90 of 114



91 of 114



92 of 114



93 of 114



94 of 114



95 of 114



96 of 114



97 of 114



98 of 114



99 of 114



100 of 114



Exhibit I 

      
     

 
Youth Sports Facility Grant 

 
Scope of Services 

 
 
Please detail the scope of work to be performed under this contract as described in the YSFG 
application. You may use and expand upon the application text.  Please be thorough in your 
description of both the entire project and how the YSFG grant will be spent on your project. 
 
 
The scope of this project is to build a new ADA compliant sports field:  full size, grass, irrigated, 
under-drained, day-lit, primarily for use by youth soccer and flag football.  This will be the City's 
first sports field.  The property is currently vacant undeveloped land and the field will be built as 
part of the first phase of development of Covington Community Park.  In addition to the field, 
the project includes a parking lot, ADA compliant portable toilets, viewing areas, informational 
kiosk, sidewalks, pathways, and surface water management.  Develop a full size grass soccer 
field at Covington Community Park.   
 

101 of 114



Exhibit II

YSFG Grant

Project Costs Volunteer Donated 
Materials Prof. Service Cash Request

Volunteer Donated 
Materials Prof. Service Cash YSFG Grant

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROJECT COSTS YSFG REQUEST

$0 $0

YSFG  Project  Budget

Project Name: 

Project Tasks

Project Funding

Planning and Design

Project Match Budget (see Match tab)

Timeline
Start / Finish

Construction / Installation

Other Costs

TOTAL PROJECT MATCH
PROVIDED

$0
Totals:

Timeline
Subtotals:

102 of 114



C / P Volunteer Donated 
Materials Prof. Service Cash

1
2
3
4
5
6

-$           -$           -$           -$           

YSFG Project Match

Project Name:  

-$                                                                           Total match must be equal to amount noted on the budget tab. 

Project Match Budget
Please list below the different sources of match funding. For example, Parks CIP, 
volunteer labor, professional contstruction services, or cash for the community 
group. Documentation must be provided for all committed match in the form of a 
bank statement, letters, or pledge forms.

Match source & status (committed or pending)

103 of 114



Exhibit III 

 

 
Youth Sports Facility Grant 

Reimbursement Request 
 
 

Submit To: 
  
King County Parks 
Attention: Butch Lovelace 
201 South Jackson, Suite 700 
Seattle, WA  98104-3855 

From: Scott Thomas 

Organization:      Covington Parks and Recreation 
 
Address:              16720 SE 271st Street, 100 
 
Contact:    Scott Thomas                        Phone:  253-638-1110 

 
THIS REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST IS FOR ACTIVITIES / SERVICES RENDERED UNDER THE YOUTH SPORTS FACILITY 
GRANT (YSFG) AGREEMENT IDENTIFIED AS: 
 

PROJECT NAME:  COVINGTON SOCCER FIELD                       CONTRACT #  
 
THE COSTS AS PRESENTED IN THIS REQUEST WERE INCURRED BETWEEN THE TIME PERIODS OF (DATES) 

 TO  
 

CHECK WHEN THIS IS FINAL REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 
 
 
PLEASE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SUBMITTING A REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST 
 
It is the responsibility of the Agency (grant recipient) to clearly document and list with highlights the 
supporting documentation of the incurred expenses. You must also clearly and adequately document the 
match expended. Track these expenses and reimbursements on the budget form (Exhibit II) and submit this 
page, the budget form (Exhibit II), and all supporting documents together when requesting reimbursement. 
 
 
 
I CERTIFY THAT THE REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST IN THE AMOUNT OF $              HAS BEEN 
INCURRED AND PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE OR IS NOW DUE AND THAT NECESSARY RECEIPTS OR INVOICES 
ARE ATTACHED. I ALSO CERTIFY THAT THE MATCH EXPENDED ON THIS PROJECT AS NOTED ON THE 
BUDGET FORM IS ACCURATE AND DOCUMENTED. 
 
 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE     DATE 
 
 
TITLE 
 

104 of 114



Exhibit IV 

 
 

Youth Sports Facility Grant 
Invoicing & Recordkeeping 

 
 
 
 
1.   King County grant funds can be requested and paid to the Agency only after the 

costs have been incurred.  To receive reimbursement, the Agency must submit to 
King County Parks an accurate and complete invoice based on the Budget 
(Exhibit II) with supporting documentation such as bills which have been paid, 
receipts or invoices that are due and payable.  DO NOT SEND PARKS THE 
ORIGINALS; KEEP ORIGINALS IN YOUR PROJECT FILE AND SEND 
COPIES.   

 
2. The attached budget form (Exhibit II), is the same budget form used for the 

application. That form should be used for tracking the budget and submitted when 
requesting reimbursement, either in part or whole, and updated through the life of 
the grant. It is used for all stages of the grant—application, contract submittal, and 
reimbursement request. 

 
3. The Agency will receive reimbursement from King County within approximately 

15 working days after Parks receives the invoice.  The Agency must pay any bills 
due after receipt of County funds. 

 
4. The Agency shall follow the guidelines as outlined in Sections 10 & 11 of the 

Contract related to recordkeeping. 
 
 
 
 

105 of 114



Exhibit V 

 

        
 

Youth Sports Facility Grant 
Design Documents 

 
 
 
 
Please provide design documents and any specifications that detail the project, particularly 
related to the YSFG portion if part of a larger project.  Scale your documents to 8 ½ x 11 inches 
if possible. Include the following details if applicable: 
 

• Facility dimensions 
• Specifications on drainage, irrigation, and lighting, fencing and other applicable 

information related to fields 
• Material and equipment specifications 
• Playgrounds: The manufacturer is usually able to provide a schematic design that details 

the layout and specific playground pieces 
• Site plan 
 

106 of 114



 
Exhibit VI 

 
 

Youth Sports Facility Grant 
Certificate of Insurance 

 
 
 

Please return a Certificate of Insurance naming King County as additional insured. See Sections 
17 and 18 of the Contract for additional information regarding insurance requirements. 
Insurance requirements may vary depending on the scope of the project. Please call the YSFG 
project manager if you have questions related to the insurance requirements for your project. 

107 of 114



Give form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification(Rev. January 2003)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name

List account number(s) here (optional)

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)

City, state, and ZIP code

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e

S
ee

 S
p

ec
ifi

c 
In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

2.

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN).
However, for a resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on
page 3. For other entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number,
see How to get a TIN on page 3.

Social security number

––
or

Requester’s name and address (optional)

Employer identification numberNote: If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose number
to enter. –

Certification

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and

2.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup
withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply.
For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement
arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but you must
provide your correct TIN. (See the instructions on page 4.)

Sign
Here

Signature of
U.S. person � Date �

Purpose of Form

Form W-9 (Rev. 1-2003)

Part I

Part II

Business name, if different from above

Cat. No. 10231X

Check appropriate box:

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

U.S. person. Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person
(including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN to the
person requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are
waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding,
or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a
U.S. exempt payee.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person, use the
appropriate Form W-8 (see Pub. 515, Withholding of Tax on
Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entities).

3. I am a U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien).

A person who is required to file an information return with
the IRS, must obtain your correct taxpayer identification
number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to you, real
estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition
or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or
contributions you made to an IRA.

Individual/
Sole proprietor Corporation Partnership Other �

Exempt from backup
withholding

Note: If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9
to request your TIN, you should use the requester’s form.
However, this form must meet the acceptable specifications
descr ibed in Pub. 1167, General Rules and Specifications for
Substitute Tax Forms and Schedules.

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien.
Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the
terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on
certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a
provision known as a “saving clause.” Exceptions specified
in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to
continue for certain types of income even after the recipient
has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an
exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to
claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income,
you must attach a statement that specifies the following five
items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same
treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a
nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.
3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that

contains the saving clause and its exceptions.
4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the

exemption from tax.
5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under

the terms of the treaty article.

EXHIBIT VII

108 of 114



Form W-9 (Rev. 1-2003) Page 2

Sole proprietor. Enter your individual name as shown on
your social security card on the “Name” line. You may enter
your business, trade, or “doing business as (DBA)” name on
the “Business name” line.

Other entities. Enter your business name as shown on
required Federal tax documents on the “Name” line. This
name should match the name shown on the charter or other
legal document creating the entity. You may enter any
business, trade, or DBA name on the “Business name” line.

If the account is in joint names, list first, and then circle,
the name of the person or entity whose number you entered
in Part I of the form.

Limited liability company (LLC). If you are a single-member
LLC (including a foreign LLC with a domestic owner) that is
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner under
Treasury regulations section 301.7701-3, enter the owner’s
name on the “Name” line. Enter the LLC’s name on the
“Business name” line.

Specific Instructions

Name

Exempt From Backup Withholding

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not
exempt from backup withholding. Corporations are exempt
from backup withholding for certain payments, such as
interest and dividends.

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not
subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable
interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup
withholding. See the instructions below and the separate
Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to
withholding. If you make a false statement with no
reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you
are subject to a $500 penalty.
Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully
falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to
criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Penalties
Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN
to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of $50 for each
such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause
and not to willful neglect.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in
violation of Federal law, the requester may be subject to civil
and criminal penalties.

If you are an individual, you must generally enter the name
shown on your social security card. However, if you have
changed your last name, for instance, due to marriage
without informing the Social Security Administration of the
name change, enter your first name, the last name shown on
your social security card, and your new last name.

Exempt payees. Backup withholding is not required on any
payments made to the following payees:

1. An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a),
any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the
account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2);

2. The United States or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities;

3. A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of the
United States, or any of their political subdivisions or
instrumentalities;

4. A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions,
agencies, or instrumentalities; or

5. An international organization or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities.

Other payees that may be exempt from backup
withholding include:

6. A corporation;
7. A foreign central bank of issue;
8. A dealer in securities or commodities required to register

in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a
possession of the United States;

If you are exempt, enter your name as described above and
check the appropriate box for your status, then check the
“Exempt from backup withholding” box in the line following
the business name, sign and date the form.

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup
withholding because you did not report all your interest and
dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and
dividends only), or

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an
incorrect TIN, or

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part
II instructions on page 4 for details), or

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments
you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make
the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest
and dividends on your tax return.

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester, or

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain
payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and
pay to the IRS 30% of such payments (29% after December
31, 2003; 28% after December 31, 2005). This is called
“backup withholding.” Payments that may be subject to
backup withholding include interest, dividends, broker and
barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee
pay, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real
estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup
withholding if:

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity not
subject to backup withholding, give the requester the
appropriate completed Form W-8.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty
allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income
received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the
United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a
resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United
States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of
the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30,
1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply
even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of
the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this
exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is
relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on
his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to
Form W-9 a statement that includes the information
described above to support that exemption.

Note: You are requested to check the appropr iate box for
your status (individual/sole propr ietor, corporation, etc. ).

Note: If you are exempt from backup withholding, you should
still complete this form to avoid possible erroneous backup
withholding.

109 of 114



Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2002) Page 3

Part I. Taxpayer Identification
Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident
alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an
SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification
number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If
you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one
immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5,
Application for a Social Security Card, from your local Social
Security Administration office or get this form on-line at
www.ssa.gov/online/ss5.html. You may also get this form
by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for
IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an
ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification
Number, to apply for an EIN. You can get Forms W-7 and
SS-4 from the IRS by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM
(1-800-829-3676) or from the IRS Web Site at www.irs.gov.

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a
TIN, write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and
date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and
dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect
to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60
days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are
subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule
does not apply to other types of payments. You will be
subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you
provide your TIN to the requester.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may
enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that
you use your SSN.

If you are a single-owner LLC that is disregarded as an
entity separate from its owner (see Limited liability
company (LLC) on page 2), enter your SSN (or EIN, if you
have one). If the LLC is a corporation, partnership, etc., enter
the entity’s EIN.
Note: See the chart on page 4 for further clar ification of
name and TIN combinations.

Note: Writing “Applied For” means that you have already
applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.
Caution: A disregarded domestic entity that has a foreign
owner must use the appropr iate Form W-8.

9. A futures commission merchant registered with the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission;

10. A real estate investment trust;
11. An entity registered at all times during the tax year

under the Investment Company Act of 1940;
12. A common trust fund operated by a bank under

section 584(a);
13. A financial institution;
14. A middleman known in the investment community as a

nominee or custodian; or
15. A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or

described in section 4947.

THEN the payment is exempt
for . . .

If the payment is for . . .

All exempt recipients except 
for 9

Interest and dividend payments

Exempt recipients 1 through 13.
Also, a person registered under
the Investment Advisers Act of
1940 who regularly acts as a
broker

Broker transactions

Exempt recipients 1 through 5Barter exchange transactions
and patronage dividends

Generally, exempt recipients
1 through 7 2

Payments over $600 required
to be reported and direct
sales over $5,000 1

1 See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.
2 However, the following payments made to a corporation (including gross
proceeds paid to an attorney under section 6045(f), even if the attorney is a
corporation) and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup
withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys’ fees; and payments
for services paid by a Federal executive agency.

The chart below shows types of payments that may be
exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the
exempt recipients listed above, 1 through 15.

110 of 114



Form W-9 (Rev. 1-2003) Page 4

 

What Name and Number To Give the
Requester

Give name and SSN of:For this type of account:

The individual1. Individual

The actual owner of the account
or, if combined funds, the first
individual on the account 1

2. Two or more individuals (joint
account)

The minor 23. Custodian account of a minor
(Uniform Gift to Minors Act)

The grantor-trustee 14. a. The usual revocable
savings trust (grantor is
also trustee)

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts
opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered
active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you
do not have to sign the certification.

The actual owner 1b. So-called trust account
that is not a legal or valid
trust under state law2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange

accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts
considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the
certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are
subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing
your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2
in the certification before signing the form.

The owner 35. Sole proprietorship or
single-owner LLC

Give name and EIN of:For this type of account:

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the
certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

A valid trust, estate, or
pension trust

6.

Legal entity 4

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but
you do not have to sign the certification unless you have
been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN.
“Other payments” include payments made in the course of
the requester’s trade or business for rents, royalties, goods
(other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care
services (including payments to corporations), payments to a
nonemployee for services, payments to certain fishing boat
crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to
attorneys (including payments to corporations).

The corporationCorporate or LLC electing
corporate status on Form
8837

7.

The organizationAssociation, club, religious,
charitable, educational, or
other tax-exempt organization

8.

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt,
qualified tuition program payments (under section 529),
IRA or Archer MSA contributions or distributions, and
pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but
you do not have to sign the certification.

The partnershipPartnership or multi-member
LLC

9.

The broker or nomineeA broker or registered
nominee

10.

The public entityAccount with the Department
of Agriculture in the name of
a public entity (such as a
state or local government,
school district, or prison) that
receives agricultural program
payments

11.

Privacy Act Notice

1 List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only
one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person’s number must be
furnished.
2 Circle the minor’s name and furnish the minor’s SSN.
3 You must show your individual name, but you may also enter your
business or “DBA” name. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have
one).
4 List first and circle the name of the legal trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do
not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal
entity itself is not designated in the account title.)

Note: If no name is circled when more than one name is
listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first
name listed.

Sole proprietorship or
single-owner LLC

The owner 3

12.

Part II. Certification

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in
Part I should sign (when required). Exempt recipients, see
Exempt from backup withholding on page 2.

You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Payers must generally withhold 30% of taxable
interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to a payer. Certain penalties may also apply.

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S.
person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be
requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 3,
and 5 below indicate otherwise.

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons who must file information returns
with the IRS to report interest, dividends, and certain other income paid to you, mortgage interest you paid, the acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made to an IRA or Archer MSA. The IRS uses the
numbers for identification purposes and to help verify the accuracy of your tax return. The IRS may also provide this information
to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation, and to cities, states, and the District of Columbia to carry out their
tax laws. We may also disclose this information to other countries under a tax treaty, or to Federal and state agencies to enforce
Federal nontax criminal laws and to combat terrorism.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as
indicated in 1 through 5 below.

111 of 114



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date: September 13, 2011  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

September 27, 2011 – City Council Regular Meeting 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

112 of 114



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
AGENDA

CITY OF COVINGTON
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

www.covingtonwa.gov

Tuesday, September 27, 2011                                                                             City Council Chambers
7:00 p.m.                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION
• Safe Schools Week Proclamation – Week of October ___ - ___, 2011 
• Fire Prevention Week Proclamation – Week of October ___ - ___, 2011 
• Make a Difference Day Proclamation – October ___, 2011 
• National Community Planning Month Proclamation – October 2011 
• Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation – October 2011 

PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers shall
address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving comment from the 
public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  If additional time is 
needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows.*

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
C-1. Approval of Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Approval of Vouchers (Hendrickson) 

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad: September 8 Meeting.
• Economic Development Co-Chair Jeff Wagner: August 25 Meeting. 

Future Meetings: 
• Arts:  September meeting canceled; next meeting October 13. 
• Parks:  September meeting canceled; next meeting October 19.
• Planning:  September meetings canceled; next meeting October 6.

PUBLIC HEARING
1. Receive Comments from the Public on a Recently Imposed Moratorium on Medical Marijuana 

Dispensaries and Collective Gardens (Springer/Hart)

NEW BUSINESS
2. Consider Ordinance Adopting 2011 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Hart)
3. All Hazard Regional Memo of Understanding (Akramoff) 

Draft 
As of 9/07/11 

113 of 114

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  If needed 
  
ADJOURN    
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at (253) 638-1110 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 638-
1110.  

114 of 114


	09-13-11 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, September 13, 2011                                                                    City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION

	Consent 1 Green Sheet 09-13-11 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent 1 attachment 08.09.11 Special for Interviews & Reg CC
	Consent 2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 09-13-11
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent 2 attachment
	Consent 3 Green Sheet 09.13.11 RAHP Interlocal blue sheet
	Consent 3 attachment Attchmt 1. RAHP ICA and Guidelines
	REGIONAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAM
	INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
	RECITALS
	IV. Effective Date
	This Agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2012.
	V. Agreement Duration
	A. This Agreement shall extend for a three-year period, through the 2012, 2013 and 2014 calendar years, and shall remain in effect until the RAHP funds allocated in this three-year period, including any recaptured funds received with respect to activities funded during this three-year period, are expended, and the funded activities completed.  
	B. Renewal. In the final year of the three-year Agreement period, the county will initiate a review of the Agreement no later than March 1st, through an invitation to all eligible cities in the county, to determine whether a majority of cities favor automatic renewal without amendment for a successive three-year period, or whether there are potential amendments. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for participation in a successive three-year Agreement period, unless the city official empowered to sign the Agreement provides written notice to the county that it elects not to participate in a new three-year Agreement period, or that it wishes to amend the Agreement, by the date set forth by the County in a letter to the city following the review process.
	VI. General Matters and Recording
	I. Introduction
	II. Duration of the Guidelines
	III. Review and Update of the Guidelines
	IV. Decision-Making Structure and Regional Allocation Method
	V. Use of the RAHP Funds in King County
	1. Eligible Housing Types
	2. Eligible Populations Served by Housing Units
	3. Eligible Applicants
	4. Eligible use of RAHP Funds by Priority

	VI. RAHP Administration


	Consent 4 Green Sheet 09-13-11 Appointments Planning Commission
	Consent Agenda Item 4

	Item 1 Blue Sheet and attachment 9-13 Final Draft Charter
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet 09-13-11_Streetlight_Resolution_Blue_Sheet_SBS Edit
	Item 2 attachment 09-13-11_Streetlight_Resolution SBS Edit
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 09-13-11 Covington Water Franchise Blue Sheet
	Item 3 attachment 09-13-11 Franchise_Agreement__CWD__FINAL
	Item 4 Blue Sheet, WWRP Grant Contract, 9-13-11, v4
	Item 4 attachment Contract 10-1346 Covington Community Park Sports Field and Trails
	Item 5 Blue Sheet, KC YSFG Grant Contract, 9-13-11, v3
	Item 5 attachment 1
	KC YSFG Exhibit I - Scope of Services, 9-6-11
	Youth Sports Facility Grant
	Scope of Services

	KC YSFG Exhibit II- budget_match_2010
	Project Budget
	Match

	KC YSFG Exhibit III- Invoice Voucher, 9-6-11
	Reimbursement Request
	PLease read carefully before submitting a reimbursement request


	KC YSFG Exhibit IV- Reporting, 9-6-11
	Youth Sports Facility Grant
	Invoicing & Recordkeeping


	KC YSFG Exhibit V- Design Documents, 9-6-11
	Youth Sports Facility Grant
	Design Documents

	KC YSFG Exhibit VI- Certificate of Insurance, 9-6-11
	Youth Sports Facility Grant
	Certificate of Insurance

	KC YSFG Exhibit VII-W9, 9-6-11
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet



